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Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statemenithin the meaning of the federal securities lawd ¢ghe Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, which are based amagement's current expectations, estimates an@gons. These statements may
found throughout this Fori10-K, particularly under the headings "BusinesstidiManagement's Discussion and Analysis of Findncia
Condition and Results of Operation," among othEmward-looking statements typically are identifieglthe use of terms such as "may,"
"will," "should," "expect," "anticipate," "believe;'estimate," "intend" and similar words, althougbme forward-looking statements are
expressed differently. You should consider stat&sitbat contain these words carefully because tlesgribe our expectations, plans,
strategies and goals and our beliefs concerningriubusiness conditions, our future results of afiens, our future financial positions, and
our business outlook or state other "forward-logKimformation.

The factors listed below under the heading "Ris&téi&@" and in the other sections of this Form 1@+idvide examples of risks,
uncertainties and events that could cause our dcasults to differ materially from the expectatsoexpressed in our forward-looking
statements. These risks, uncertainties and evésdsreclude, but are not limited to, the followingncertainties regarding our ability to open
stores in new and existing markets and operateetiwes on a profitable basis; conditions affegtionsumer spending; inclement weather;
changes in our merchandise mix; timing and typsadés events, promotional activities and other #ibiag; increased or new competition;
loss or departure of one or more members of ouibsegnanagement, as well as experienced buying athgement personnel; an increase
in the cost or a disruption in the flow of our prars; seasonal and quarterly fluctuations; fluctoas in our comparable store results; our
ability to operate information systems and impletmaw technologies effectively; our ability to gexte strong cash flows from our
operations; our ability to maintain internal controver financial reporting; and our ability to amipate and respond in a timely manner to
changing consumer demands and preferences.

The forward-looking statements made in this ForrKli@late only to events as of the date on whiehstatements are made. Except as
may be required by law, we undertake no obligat@aopdate any forward-looking statement to reflaatnts or circumstances after the date
on which the statement is made or to reflect thmigence of unanticipated events.

The terms "Tuesday Morning," "we,
subsidiaries.

us," and "oas'used in this Form 10-K refer to Tuesday Morrlmgporation and its




PART |
ltem 1. Business
Overview

We are a leading closeout retailer of ufgshame furnishings, housewares, gifts and relagads in the United States. We opened our
first store in 1974 and operated 842 stores intdfés as of June 30, 2008. Our stores operategdpeinodic "sale events," that occur in each
month except January and July. We are generalfedidor up to the first two weeks of January arlg ds we conduct physical inventories at
all of our stores. We purchase first quality, braatghe merchandise at closeout pricing and, in &ethjt at prices significantly below those
generally charged by department stores and spgeiadt catalog retailers. We do not sell secondsgidars, refurbished or factory rejects.

We believe that our well recognized, fogality brand name merchandise and value-basemgti@ve enabled us to establish and
maintain strong customer loyalty. Our customersy ate predominantly women from middle to upper-imechouseholds, are brand savvy,
value-conscious customers seeking quality prodatatisscount pricing. While we offer our customessisistent merchandise categories, each
sales event features limited quantities of newaukaling products within these categories, crgatitftreasure hunt" atmosphere in our
stores.

We believe that our customers are attraitexir stores by our advertising and direct meslgpam that emphasize the limited quantities
of first quality, brand name merchandise which iferaat attractive prices, rather than locationisTias allowed us to open our stores in
secondary locations of major suburban markets aadirip malls, near our middle and upper inconstocners. We are able to obtain
favorable lease terms because of our flexibilitgibe selection and our no-frills format, whichoalls us to use a wide variety of space
configurations.

In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008reserded sales of $885.3 million and operating meaf $24.9 million. We paid dividends in
calendar years 2005, 2006 and 2007 ranging fro@63fer share to $0.80 per share. On February B, 200 Board of Directors voted to
terminate the declaration of an annual cash divdd@he Board of Directors indicated that it willnsider the full range of alternatives with
regard to the use of any excess cash flow in thedu

On April 30, 2007, our Board of Directoggpaoved a change in our fiscal year end from Deegrh to June 30, effective June 30,
2007. Accordingly, our financial statements incldlde six month period ended June 30, 2007, and&pllesent the twelve month periods
ending June 30, thereafter. As a result of thisighathis Form 10-K includes financial informatimm the six month transition period ended
June 30, 2007 and 2006 and for the twelve montiegeended June 30, 2008, and 2007, December 86, 2005, 2004, and 2003. The
twelve-month period ended June 30, 2008 is hereinedferred to as fiscal 2008.

Key Operating Strengths
Our success is based on the following dpeyatrengths:

. Unique Event-Based Format. We distinguish ourselves from other retailerswatunique "event-based" selling strategy,
creating the excitement of multiple "grand openireysd "closeout sales" each year. Merchandiseagable in limited
guantities and specific items are generally noker@phed during a sales event, however, storesnuento receive new
merchandise throughout a sale event. We believeattbdimited quantities of specific items inteysifustomers' sense of
urgency to buy our merchandise. Accordingly, weehlaistorically generated a majority of an everdlesin the first five days
of the event. We intend to continue to adhere idtrategy, but we have increased the frequenehipiments to our stores of
new and




different merchandise during the later stages lefssavents to encourage new and repeat custonis: vis

. Strong Sourcing Capabilities and Purchasing Flexiblity. We have developed strong sourcing capabilitiasdlow us to
gain favorable access to first quality, brand nameechandise at attractive prices. In many casesiravéhe retailer of choice
liquidate inventory due to our ability to make puasing decisions quickly and to rapidly sell laggentities of merchandise
without disrupting the manufacturers' traditionestdbution channels or compromising their bran@dga. Our flexible
purchasing strategy allows us to pursue new preduatl merchandise categories from vendors as amytets arise. We
employ an experienced buying team consisting digers currently, with an average of over 22 yefretail experience. Oi
buyers and our reputation as a preferred, reliclblgeout retailer have enabled us to establish-terg relationships with a
diverse group of top-of-the-line vendors.

. Loyal Customer Base of Brand Savvy and Val.-Conscious Consumers We have a loyal customer base consisting
primarily of women ranging in age from 35 to 54rfroniddle and upper-income households with a meaiaual family
income of approximately $60,000. In addition to imakpurchase decisions based on brand names addgprquality, our
customers are also value-conscious. We believealuebased pricing, which enables our customers tozealvings of up 1
50% to 80% over competing department store retaiép, has resulted in both strong customer loyatty satisfaction. We
have developed and currently maintain a propriataaiting and email list consisting of over 9.0 moifl customers. These
customers have visited our stores and requestdihgsaio alert them of upcoming sales events inalgdhe brand name
merchandise and prices to be offered, prior tatheertising of a sales event to the general public.

. Attractive Store Level Economics. We have attractive store level economics duautdaw store operating expenses and the
low initial investment required to open new stoK@ar destination-oriented retail format allows a®pen stores in a wide
range of locations, resulting in lower lease ra@spared to those of other retailers. In additmour low real estate costs, we
maintain low operating and depreciation costs duaut no-frills, self-service format. Because we l@v cost store fixtures
and low pre-opening costs, our new stores requiogvanitial investment and have historically gesitexd a solid return on
investment in their first full year.

. Disciplined Inventory and Supply Chain Management. We have developed disciplined inventory contral aupply chain
management procedures. Our purchasing flexibihiy strong relationships with vendors allow us tordinate the timing of
purchases and receipt of merchandise closely witrsales events. Our merchandise and distributistems allow us to
quickly and efficiently process and ship merchamdiiem our distribution center to our stores. Hinadur point-of-sale
systems allow us to effectively manage our inventevels and sales performance. We have increaseshipping and sorting
capacity at our distribution center to be abledcoanmodate a future growth of up to approximateR®0Q to 1,250 stores.

Growth Strategy

Our growth strategy is to continue to buildour position as a leading closeout retailarpsfcale home furnishings, housewares, gifts
and related items in the United States by:

. Enhancing Our Store Base During the planning process for fiscal 2008 a8 we evaluated our current store base and
plans for new store growth. As a result of thislesion, we intend to pursue expansion and relonatpportunities in our
existing store base as well as open new storeshdtbhrnew stores and relocations, we are negagiinupgraded sites. With
the expansion opportunities, we will be workinghwltigh producing stores and increasing the seflingare footage. We
believe this will benefit us and better positionfoisthe long term while still
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maintaining a low cost per square foot in rent egee To that end, for the fiscal year ending Juh€809 we plan to add
slightly fewer stores than in prior years and expanrelocate existing stores as we locate prdétapportunities to do so. We
believe there is the potential for approximateBOD, to 1,250 stores in the United States and damiitipate any difficulties in
identifying suitable additional store locationsaireas with our target customer demographics.

. Enhancing Our Sales Productivity. We intend to increase the number of customesé#etions by refining our merchandise
mix and through other operating initiatives. Foaele, we have made shifts in our product mix taufoon functional,
utilitarian items rather than purely decorativecagaents. In addition, we have been very seledtivaur seasonal merchandise
purchases and remain focused on high quality, e items. We are able to increase our merchardierings throughout
each sale event and on a day-in, day-out basielyedng fresh product to our stores between 49&dimes per year. We
believe this attracts new customers, encouragesatefisits by existing customers and increasesearage transaction value
during the later stages of each sale event. We inaveased staffing at some of our high volumeestan an effort to improve
our customer service levels and drive our salesmes.

. Extending Our Customer Reach. Historically, we have used direct mailings, tdegeemails, and newspaper and print
advertising to attract customers to our stores.lé\Mlae believe that the use of direct mailing anditalerts remain effective,
we also believe that broadcast advertising is gacife means to attract new customers, encouguest visits by our existing
customers and increase consumer awareness of Judsdaing. We have used television in select marketer the last five
years and may, from time to time, continue ourafgelevision advertising in fiscal 2009. We algmeaate our "eTreasures"®
program that provides our customers with an enfalio newest weekly arrivals, special offers andmonthly mailer, all in
the convenience of their home or office.

. Improving Systems. We plan to upgrade and update our current sysésmequired in the ongoing course of businesss@he
improvements may include updates to our merchamgiesind inventory tracking systems, point of safensre, and Internet
sales site.

Industry Trends

As a closeout retailer of first qualityabd name merchandise, we benefit from attractiaeastteristics in the closeout industry. Close
merchandise is generally available to closeoutlestaat low prices for a variety of reasons, imlthg the inability of a manufacturer to sell
merchandise through regular channels, the disagemice of merchandise due to a style or color chahgecancellation of orders placed by
other retailers and the termination of businesa byanufacturer or wholesaler. Occasionally, theemait retailer may be able to purchase
closeout merchandise because a manufacturer hassesaw materials or production capacity. Typicallgseout retailers have lower
merchandise costs, capital expenditures and opgratists, allowing them to sell merchandise atggriower than other retailers.

In addition, we benefit from several treimshe retailing industry. The increase in "justtime" inventory management technigues and
the rise in retailer consolidation have both resiiih a shift of inventory risk from retailers t@mufacturers. In response to an increasingly
competitive market, manufacturers are introducieg products and new packaging more frequently. @liewe that these trends have hel
make the closeout retailer an integral part of nfacturers' overall distribution strategies. As sutg we believe manufacturers are
increasingly looking for larger, more sophisticatdoseout retailers such as ourselves that carhpaeclarger and more varied merchandise
and can control the distribution and advertisingmécific products in order to minimize disruptiorthe manufacturers' traditional
distribution channels.




Products

We sell upscale home furnishings, housesyayiéts and related items. We do not sell secoingsyulars, refurbished or factory rejects.
Our merchandise primarily consists of lamps, rk@shen accessories, small electronics, gourmeséwares, linens, luggage, bedroom and
bathroom accessories, toys, stationary and silktglas well as crystal, collectibles and silvewsgy pieces. We specialize in weieognized
first quality, brand name merchandise, which hatioted Calphalon cookware, Krups, KitchenAid ands@art appliances, Sferra linens,
Donna Karan bath towels, Samsonite luggage, WalladeGorham flatware, Lenox and Dansk tabletop gMiarcrystal, Steinbach and
Hummel collectibles, Madame Alexander dolls, Rdyallton and Wedgwood china and giftware and mahgnst

We differ from discount retailers in thag¢ wo not stock continuing lines of merchandise.a@Bse we offer a continuity of merchandise
categories with ever-changing individual produdenhgs, we provide our customers a higher proportif new merchandise items than
general merchandisers. We are continually lookingdd new complementary merchandise categoriesjipegal to our customers.

Purchasing

Since our inception, we have not experidrargy significant difficulty in obtaining first gligy, brand name closeout merchandise in
adequate volumes and at attractive prices. We usig af domestic vendors and international vendassindustry trends such as "just-in-
time" inventory management, retailer consolidatoa more frequent order cancellations by retapéase more inventory risk on
manufacturers, we believe we will continue to seéarease in the number of vendors looking foeetff/e ways to reduce excess inventory.
In addition, as we continue to increase our nunabstores, maximize productive retail space andeiase distribution capacity, we believe
our purchasing capacity will continue to increasd anable us to acquire larger quantities of closeterchandise from individual vendors
and manufacturers. Improvements in our distribufioocesses allow us to stock merchandise in ovestmore quickly, which increases our
purchasing flexibility. As a result of these treraal initiatives, we believe we will be able togaddvantage of more and often larger, buying
opportunities as well as offer an enhanced seledig@roducts to our customers. During fiscal 20848, top ten vendors accounted for
approximately 13.1% of total purchases, with n@lgrvendor accounting for more than 2.6%.

Pricing

Our pricing policy is to sell all merchasdisignificantly below the retail prices generalyarged by department and specialty stores.
Prices are determined centrally and are uniforallatf our stores. Once a price is determined fpadicular item, labels displaying three-
tiered pricing are affixed to the product. A tydipace tag displays a competitor's "regular” priaeompetitor's "sale" price and our closeout
price. Our management and buyers verify retailgsrisy reviewing prices published in advertisemants catalogues and manufacturers'
suggested retail price lists and by visiting deparit or specialty stores selling similar merchamd®ur management information systems
provide daily sales and inventory information, whanables us to mark down unsold merchandise imnedytand systematic basis and
thereby effectively manage inventory levels.

Advertising

We plan and implement an advertising progfar each sale event. Prior to each sale eveniniate a direct mailing or email to
customers on our mailing list through our eTreas®remail program, which consists of customers wénelpreviously visited our stores and
requested mailings.




These direct mailings alert customers to the opeafra sale event and the merchandise and pricesfere We also communicate with
customers by advertising in local newspapers it @our markets.

While we believe our direct mailings, talegbemails, newspaper and print advertising reratiective, we believe broadcast advertising
may also be an effective means to attract new mests encourage repeat visits by our existing costs and increase consumer awarene
Tuesday Morning. We have used television advegigirselect markets in the past and may continuaise of television advertising in fiscal
2009.

Stores and Store Operations

Site Selection.  During the planning process for fiscal 2009,aevaluated our current store base and plans forstew growth. As a
result of this evaluation, we will continue pursgiiexpansion and relocation opportunities within existing store base as well as opening
new stores. For both new stores and relocationgre/@egotiating for upgraded sites. With the exmanopportunities, we are working with
high producing stores and increasing the sellingegjfootage. We believe this will benefit us asttdy position us for the long-term while
still maintaining a low cost per square foot intrerpense. To that end, for the fiscal year endinge 30, 2009 we plan to add slightly fewer
stores than in prior years and expand or relocastieg stores as we locate profitable opportusit@do so. We expect our new stores to be
similar in appearance and operation to our existioges and do not anticipate any difficultiesdaritifying suitable additional store locations
in areas with our target customer demographicsvésontinue our expansion and relocation strategyexpect to incur a minimal increase
in the cost of real estate for those locations.

We believe that our customers are attraitexlir stores by our advertising, direct mail @anghil programs that emphasizes the limited
guantities of first quality, brand name merchandaitéch we offer at attractive prices, rather thgridzation. This has allowed us to open our
stores in secondary locations of major suburbarketsrsuch as strip malls, near our middle and wp®me customers. We are able to
obtain favorable lease terms because of our flkityilim site selection and our no-frills format, igh allows us to effectively use a wide
variety of space configurations. As a result o$ thpportunistic approach to site selection, weeleliour real estate costs are lower than those
of other retailers.

StoreLeases. Except for one store adjacent to our distriutienter, we lease our store locations under aogedable operating
leases that include optional renewal periods. Sohoeir leases also provide for contingent rent Bag®mn store sales exceeding stipulated
amounts.

Our store leases typically include "kickues," which allow us, at our option, to exit fdese 24 to 36 months after entering into the
lease. These kick clauses, when combined withrxpensive and portable store fixtures, provideitis flexibility in opening new stores
allowing us to quickly and cost-effectively vacatsite that does not meet our sales expectatiana.rasult, we generally do not operate
locations with store level operating losses.

StoreLayout. Our opportunistic site selection and "no-ffikgproach to presenting merchandise allow us ¢causide variety of
space configurations. The size of our stores gépeeamges from 6,000 to 15,000 square feet andamerl approximately 9,200 square feet as
of June 30, 2008. We have designed our stores fiortetional, with little emphasis placed upon fids and leasehold improvements. We
display all merchandise at each store by type @&dah racks or counters, and we maintain minimowemtory in stockrooms.

Store Operations.  We operate our stores during "sales eventat"abcur once each month except January and Jyaré/generally
closed for up to the first two weeks of January dmlg as we conduct physical inventories at allsiares. We have increased the frequen
shipments of new merchandise during a sale evdnthvhas resulted in improved efficiency of merdfiaa receiving
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and restocking activities at our stores. We hayglémented initiatives to enhance the process bgtwimierchandise is unloaded at the store
and moved to the selling floor and we have incréamg internal training program for store manag#rs.believe that on-going training is a
critical component to the success of our store m@meent. Each store manager receives ongoing tgg@ginning with new manager train|
upon being hired or promoted as well as attendahoae or more training sessions held in Dallaga$eln addition, store managers are
supported not only by the corporate office, bub &lg regional and zone field managers.

Store Management.  Each store has a manager who is responsibledauniting, training and supervising store persramd assuring
that the store is managed in accordance with dabkshed guidelines and procedures. Store managerfsill-time employees. Our store
managers are supported by regional field manageamehzone level support. We have increased regathzone personnel over the past
two years and anticipate this level of support wilprove and maintain consistency of executionuaitstores. Our store managers are
responsible for reviewing store inventory and eimgutheir store is continually stocked for salerg@vend non-sale event periods. The store
manager is assisted by part-time employees whe secashiers and help with merchandise stockfog®f

Members of our management visit selecterestduring sale event and non-sale event periods/tew inventory levels and
presentation, personnel performance, expense ¢engarurity and adherence to our procedures.ditiad, regional managers periodically
meet with senior management to review store pdiai@l to discuss purchasing, merchandising andtiing strategies for future sale
events.

StoreLocations.  As of June 30, 2008, we operated 842 stord3 states. Specific store locations can be accebsmagh our website
atwww.tuesdaymorning.com

Distribution

An important aspect of our success invotwasability to process, sort and distribute inweptquickly and efficiently. Our buying,
distribution center and planning and allocationatépents work closely together to ensure that wuentory flow is efficient and effective.
The majority of our merchandise is received, inggbccounted, ticketed and designated for indiMidt@res at our central distribution center
in the Dallas, Texas, metropolitan area. As a gdmate, we carry similar products in each of airss, but the amount of inventory each
store is allocated varies depending upon sizetitmtand sales projections for that store. Conststéth our sale event strategy, we ship most
of our merchandise to our stores within a few weafkits arrival at our distribution center. We geadly do not replenish specific merchand
during a sale event; however, new and differentimandise is shipped to stores throughout a salat.eve

We make inventory deliveries to our stdyvetveen 40 to 47 times per year, which allows wsgdnificantly reduce the amount of
inventory stored at our distribution center andmt&in more consistent in-store inventory levelssTtumber of shipments also allows our
stores to process shipments more effectively amekgheir shelves with new merchandise during saémts. We also use a bar-code locator
system to track inventory from the time it is rees until it is shipped to our stores. This systdlows us to locate, price, sort and ship
merchandise efficiently from our central distrilmuticenter.

Management Information Systems

We have invested significant resourceomguters, bar code scanners and radio frequenoynials, software programming and related
equipment, technology and training, and we willtawre to update these systems as necessary. Weéamaarcorporate local area network
computer system, which includes purchase orderggsiag, imports, transportation, distribution, pahsale and financial systems and
enables us to efficiently control and process ouemtory.




At the store level, we have computer-basegibsters that capture daily sales data at the Biel. Sales information, inventory
information, open to buy, and other operationahdatistributed daily to designated levels of nggamaent and to the individuals or groups
that have responsibility for specific aspects ef blusiness.

Competition

We believe the principal factors by which eompete are price and product offering. We belisg compete effectively by pricing the
merchandise we sell significantly below departn@ent specialty store prices and by offering a bassbrtment of high-end, first quality,
brand name merchandise. We currently compete dgaitiserse group of retailers, including departtveerd discount stores, specialty, e-
commerce and catalog retailers and mass merchamtsh sell, among other products, home furnishihgsisewares and related products.
also compete in particular markets with a substhntimber of retailers that specialize in one orertgpes of home furnishing products that
we sell. Some of these competitors have substhngjedater financial resources that may, amongrdtiings, increase their ability to
purchase inventory at lower costs or to initiatd anstain aggressive price competition.

We are distinguishable from our competiiarseveral respects. Unlike our competitors, wigidmarily offer continuing lines of
merchandise, we offer changing lines of merchandiégending on availability at value driven pride®st retailers in the closeout retailing
industry are either general merchandisers or foougpparel, while our focus is on primarily upsdadene furnishings, housewares, gifts and
related items. In addition, most closeout retaifecsis on lower and middle-income consumers, whidegenerally cater to middle and upper-
income customers. Finally, our business model leas land continues to be focused on ten major satgewhich are promoted and
advertised to our customers through direct mailiegsails and, from time to time, television ad&nity. We believe that our sale events
create a sense of urgency and excitement on thefpawr customers because they know that the abititly of merchandise during a sale
event is limited.

Seasonality

Our business is highly seasonal, with aiiant portion of our net sales and operatingime generated during the quarter ended
December 31, which includes the holiday shoppiregse. Net sales in the quarters ended DecembdrZ10@, 2006 and 2005 accounted for
approximately 35%, 35% and 36%, respectively, afamnual net sales for such years. Operating indomike quarter ended December 31
of 2007, 2006 and 2005 accounted for approximédtéRpo, 64% and 58%, respectively, of our annual apeg income for such years.

Employees

As of August 18, 2008, we employed appratity 2,000 persons on a full-time basis and apprately 8,800 individuals on a pditae
basis. Our employees are not represented by aopsiniVe have not experienced any work stoppagéecdabor disagreements and we
believe that our employee relations are strong.

Trademarks and Tradenames

The tradename "Tuesday Morning" is matedalur business. We have registered the name ayedorning" as a service mark with
the United States Patent and Trademark office. ¥ lalso registered other trademarks includingsi@tp Time®" and "eTreasures®."
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Corporate Information

Tuesday Morning Corporation is a Delawargoration incorporated in 1991. Our principal axee® offices are located at 6250 LBJ
Freeway, Dallas, Texas 75240, and our telephonéauia (972) 387-3562.

We maintain a websitewatvw.tuesdaymorning.conCopies of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, qudytezports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and any amendmentadb seports filed with, or furnished to, the Setiesiand Exchange Commission (the
"SEC") are available our internet website.

Any materials filed or furnished by us witie SEC may be read and copies made at the SHKlis Reference Room at 100 F Street,
NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. Information on the agien of the Public Reference Room may be obtaimecalling the SEC at-800-SEC-
0330. In addition, the SEC maintains a websitew.sec.goywhich contains reports, proxy and informationesteents and other information
which we file or furnish electronically with the SE

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

Our business is subject to significantgiskou should carefully consider the risks and uaiaties described below and the other
information in this Form 10-K, including our conslalted financial statements and the notes to thtzdements. The risks and uncertainties
described below are not the only ones facing uslithhal risks and uncertainties that we do nosprely know about or that we currently
believe are immaterial may also affect our busimggEsations. If any of the events described belowwadly occur, our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be advgraffected in a material way. This could causetthding price of our common stock to
decline, perhaps significantly, and you may lose paall of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business
We face a number of risks in opening new stores anélocating existing stores.

As part of our growth strategy, we will ¢tioe to pursue expansion and relocation oppoigsih our existing store base as well as «
new stores. For both new stores and relocationgre/@egotiating for upgraded sites. With the exmanopportunities, we are working with
high producing stores and increasing the sellingasgjfootage. To that end, for the fiscal year mgpdune 30, 2009 we plan to add slightly
fewer stores than in prior years and expand ocadtoexisting stores as we locate profitable opities to do so. However, we cannot as:
that we will be able to achieve our relocation xypansion goals or that we will be able to operatereew stores profitably. Further, we can
assure that any new store will achieve similar afpeg results to those of our existing stores at ttew stores opened in markets in which we
operate will not have a material adverse effedhenrevenues and profitability of our existing s&rThe success of our planned expansion
will be dependent upon numerous factors, many atkvare beyond our control, including the following

. the ability of our personnel to adequately analyaé identify suitable markets and individual steites within those markets;
. the competition for suitable store sites;

. our ability to negotiate favorable lease terms watidlords;

. our ability to obtain governmental and other thpalty consents, permits and licenses needed tai@peur stores;

. the availability of employees to staff new storad aur ability to hire, train, motivate and retatore personnel;
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. the availability of adequate management and firmesources to properly manage an increased nuofilséores
. our ability to adapt our distribution and other myi®nal and management systems to an expandednkedivstores; and

. our ability to attract customers and generate saléficient to operate new stores profitably.

We opened stores in new markets durindiseal year ended June 30, 2008 and the six mosrilogh ended June 30, 2007 and during
calendar year 2006. We intend to enter into aduifimew markets in fiscal 2009 and beyond. Thes&etsmay have different competitive
conditions, consumer trends and discretionary spgrhatterns than our existing markets, which meayse our new stores in these markets to
be less successful than stores in our existing etgrk

Poor economic conditions affect consumer spendingnd may significantly harm our business.

The success of our business depends tmidisant extent upon the level of consumer spegudfnumber of factors beyond our control
affect the level of consumer spending on merchantiat we offer, including, among other things:

. general economic and industry conditions;

. the housing market;

. high crude oil prices, that affect gasoline andingzoil prices;

. rising food prices and their effect on consumecmigonary spending;
. the debt market;

. the level of consumer debt;

. interest rates;

. tax rates and policies;

. war, terrorism and other hostilities; and

. consumer confidence in future economic conditions.

The merchandise we sell generally consiStiscretionary items. Reduced consumer confidgloeeer housing starts and spending cut
backs may result in reduced demand for our dismmeaty items and may force us to take significameéimory markdowns. Reduced demand
also may require increased selling and promotierpenses. Adverse economic conditions and anyerkti#crease in consumer demand for
discretionary items could have a material adveffeeteon our business, results of operations amahitial condition.

Our business and results of operations are subjetd a broad range of uncertainties arising out of wdd events.

Our business and results of operationsapgect to uncertainties arising out of world egeifthese uncertainties may include a global
economy slowdown, changes in consumer spendinggelsan debt markets, increase in gasoline andalaas prices, and economic
consequences of military action or additional testaactivities. Any future events arising as aulesf terrorist activity or other world events
may have a material impact on our business, ollityatni source products, results of operations fimahcial condition.
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Our business is intensely competitive and increaseat new competition could have a material adverseffect on us.

The retail home furnishings industry issimely competitive. As a closeout retailer of hdaraishings, we currently compete against a
diverse group of retailers, including departmert discount stores, specialty and@nmerce retailers and mass merchants, whichaseting
other products, home furnishing products similat afien identical to those we sell. We also competgarticular markets with a substantial
number of retailers that specialize in one or mgpes of home furnishing and houseware productswhasell. Many of these competitors
have substantially greater financial resourcesiet allow them to initiate and sustain aggrespige competition. A number of different
competitive factors could have a material adveffseion our business, results of operations amaritial condition, including:

. increased operational efficiencies of competitors;

. competitive pricing strategies, including deep distt pricing by a broad range of retailers duriegqds of poor consumer
confidence or economic instability;

. continued and prolonged promotional activity by getitors;

. liquidation sales by a number of our competitor®whave filed or will file for bankruptcy;
. expansion by existing competitors;

. entry by new competitors into markets in which werently operate; and

. adoption by existing competitors of innovative stéormats or retail sales methods.

We cannot assure that we will be able tttiooe to compete successfully with our existinghew competitors, or that prolonged periods
of deep discount pricing by our competitors wilt nmaterially harm our business.

We must continuously attract buying opportunities br closeout merchandise and anticipate consumer deand as closeout
merchandise becomes available.

By its nature, specific closeout merchamdliems are available from manufacturers or vendererally on a non-recurring basis. As a
result, we do not have long-term contracts with\amdors for supply, pricing or access to produmis,make individual purchase decisions,
which are often for large quantities. We cannotiesshat manufacturers or vendors will continueneike closeout merchandise available to
us in quantities or on terms acceptable to usatrdbr buyers will continue to identify and takevantage of appropriate buying opportunities.
In addition, if we misjudge consumer demand fordmas, we may significantly overstock unpopularduats and be forced to take
significant markdowns and miss opportunities td mare popular products. Our inability to acquitéable merchandise in the future or to
accurately anticipate consumer demand for suchhmedise would have an adverse effect on our businesults of operations and financial
condition.

The loss of, or disruption in the operations of, oucentralized distribution center would have a mateial adverse effect on our business
and operations.

With minor exceptions, all inventory is gpéd directly from suppliers to our centralizedritisition center in the Dallas, Texas
metropolitan area, where the inventory is then @ssed, sorted and shipped to our stores. We dépdardge part on the orderly operation of
this receiving and distribution process, which defse in turn, on adherence to shipping scheduldsfactive management of the
distribution center. We cannot assure that we laaieipated all of the changing demands which opaading operations will impose on our
receiving and distribution system or that
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events beyond our control, such as disruptionparations due to fire or other catastrophic evdaltmr disagreements or shipping problems,
will not result in delays in the delivery of merciiise to our stores. We also cannot assure thahsurance will be sufficient, or that
insurance proceeds will be timely paid to us, & ¢lwent our distribution center is shut down foy ezason.

Our freight costs and thus our cost of goods sold@impacted by changes in fuel prices.

Our freight cost is impacted by changefu@l prices through surcharges. Fuel prices anchsuges affect freight cost both on inbound
freight from vendors to our distribution center andbound freight from our distribution center tar stores. In addition, the U.S. government
requires drivers of over-the-road trucks to takeaie rest periods which reduce the available arhotitime they can drive during a 24 hour
period. Increases in fuel prices and surchargesglisas stringent driver regulations, may incre@sight costs and thereby increase our cost
of goods sold.

The loss or departure of one or more members of owsenior management could have a material adversefe€t on our business.

Our future performance will depend in lapget upon the efforts and abilities of our sem@nagement, particularly Kathleen Mason,
our President and Chief Executive Officer, andathier key employees, including our buyers. The édsservice of these persons could have
a material adverse effect on our business anddyirospects. We do not maintain key person lifargnsce for Ms. Mason or our other senior
management. We only have an employment agreemémniWeg. Mason, and have no such agreements witlohoyr other members of sen
management.

We are dependent on external funding sources, whialmay not make available to us sufficient funds whewe need them.

We rely on external funding sources toficeaour operations and growth. Our ability to abdditional financing is dependent upon
future operating performance, general economiccanapetitive conditions and financial, business aier factors, many of which we can
control.

If we are not able to generate strong cash flowsdm our operations, we will not be able to supportapital expansion, operations and
debt repayment.

Our business is dependent upon our opesagienerating strong cash flows to support outabgxpansion requirements, our general
operating activities and to fund debt repayment. iBability to continue to generate sufficient cdlslws to support these activities or the lack
of availability of financing in adequate amountslam appropriate terms could adversely affect maricial performance and our earnings
share growth.

An increase in the cost or a disruption in the flowof our imported products may significantly decreas our sales and profits.

Merchandise manufactured and imported fomerseas is the majority of our total product pasgs acquired both domestically and
internationally. A disruption in the shipping oframported merchandise or an increase in the dastose products may significantly
decrease our sales and profits. In addition, ifartgd merchandise becomes more expensive or uablgithe transition to alternative
sources may not occur in time to meet our demapiglucts from alternative sources may also bessilequality and more expensive than
those we currently import. Risks associated withreliance on imported products include:

. disruptions in the shipping and importation of impd products because of factors such as:

. raw material shortages, work stoppages, strikegatlitical unrest;
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. problems with oceanic shipping, including shippaumtainer shortage

. increased custom inspections of import shipmentgtwer factors causing delays in shipments;

. economic crises, international disputes and wars; a

. increases in the cost of purchasing or shippingifor merchandise resulting from:

. loss of "most favored nation” trading status bythnited States in relation to a particular foretguntry;
. import duties, import quotas and other trade sanstiand

. increases in shipping rates.

The products we buy abroad are often pricddreign currencies and, therefore, we are #éfety fluctuating exchange rates. In the
past, we have entered into foreign currency excha@ogtracts with major financial institutions tadge these fluctuations. We might not be
able to successfully protect ourselves in the fuagainst currency rate fluctuations, and our fir@rperformance could suffer as a result.
You should read "Management's Discussion and Aisabfs-inancial Condition and Results of Operatiant "Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk" for more informatiabout our foreign currency exchange rate expostdehedging activities.

We are subject to environmental regulations.

Under various federal, state and local mrmental laws and regulations, current or previmugers or occupants of property may
become liable for the costs of removing any hazaasdmbstances found on the property. These lawsegthtions often impose liability
without regard to fault. As of June 30, 2008, waskd all but one of our stores and 444,000 sqeatef land containing a 30,000 square
building. We own 1,318,000 square feet of distiitnufacilities. In addition, we operate three albgrezind diesel storage tanks at our
distributions facilities. We could incur costs hetfuture related to our leased properties, ownédihgs or storage tanks. We cannot assure
that our policies and training will successfullyihas avoid potential violations of these enviromtaé laws and regulations in the future.

Our success depends upon our marketing, advertisingnd promotional efforts. If we are unable to implenent them successfully, or if
our competitors are more effective than we are, ourevenue may be adversely affected.

We use marketing and promotional prograsrettract customers to our stores and to encoyragsases by our customers. We use
various media for our promotional efforts, inclugliprint, television, database marketing and dineatketing. If we fail to choose the
appropriate medium for our efforts, or fail to iraplent and execute new marketing opportunitiescompetitors may be able to attract some
of our customers and cause them to decrease peschesur stores and increase purchases elsewtteih could negatively impact our
revenues. Changes in the amount and degree of fimrabintensity or merchandising strategy by ocaimpetitors could cause us to have
difficulties in retaining existing customers antratting new customers.

Inclement weather in the markets in which our stors operate could adversely affect our operating rests.

Customers' willingness to shop and theinaled for the merchandise in our stores is affelbjeddverse and inclement weather. Frequent
or unusually heavy snow, ice or rain storms, segel@ or heat or extended periods of unseasonabiipdratures in our markets could
adversely affect our sales and increase markdowns.
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We operate in highly competitive markets, and we manot be able to compete effectively

The retail business is highly competitiwe compete for customers, associates, locationshaedise, services and other important
aspects of our business with many other local oreajj national and international retailers. We &tg®e competition from alternative retail
distribution channels such as catalogues and ietevabsites. Changes in the merchandising, priantjpromotional activities of those
competitors and in the retail industry generalhayradversely affect our performance.

If we do not attract and retain quality sales, distibution center and other associates in large numlys, as well as, experienced buying
and management personnel, our performance could kedversely affected.

Our performance is dependent on recruitigyeloping, training and retaining quality saldistribution center and other associates in
large numbers, as well as, experienced buying aanthgement personnel. Many of our associates anetin level or part-time positions with
historically high rates of turnover. Our ability noeet our labor needs while controlling costs Igjett to external factors such as
unemployment levels, prevailing wage rates, mininwaage legislation and changing demographics. Iretlent of increasing wage rates, if
we do not increase our wages competitively, outoznsr service could suffer because of a declinumjity of our workforce, or our earnings
would decrease if we increase our wage rates. &uyrdioir offprice model limits the market for experienced bgyamd management persor
and requires us to do significant internal trainamgl development. Changes that adversely impadlility to attract and retain quality
associates and management personnel could advefsedy our performance.

If we are unable to operate information systems and@nplement new technologies effectively, our busise could be disrupted or our
sales or profitability could be reduced.

The efficient operation of our businesdependent on our information systems, includingadaility to operate them effectively and to
successfully implement new technologies, systemstrols and adequate disaster recovery systenasidition, we must protect the
confidentiality of our and our customers' data. Tdikire of our information systems to perform &sidned or our failure to implement and
operate them effectively could disrupt our busir@ssubject us to liability and thereby harm ousfjtability.

We maintain internal control over financial reporting, but cannot provide absolute assurance that therwill not be material errors in
our financial reporting.

We maintain a system of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting, but there are limitationkérent in internal control systems. If we are
unable to maintain adequate and effective intezaatrol over financial reporting, our financial cefing could be adversely affected. A
control system, no matter how well conceived anerafed, can provide only reasonable, not absastrance that the objectives of the
control system are met. In addition, the desiga obntrol system must reflect the fact that theeer@source constraints and the benefit of
controls must be appropriate relative to their gost

Our results of operations are subject to seasonahd quarterly fluctuations, which could have a materal adverse effect on the market
price of our common stock.

Our business is highly seasonal, with aifigant portion of our net sales and operatingine generated during the quarter ending
December 31, which includes the holiday shoppiregse. Net sales in the quarters ended DecembdrZ10@, 2006 and 2005 accounted for
approximately 35%, 35% and 36%, respectively, ofuah net sales for such years. Operating incoméh®guarters
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ended December 31 of 2007, 2006 and 2005 accotortegproximately 142%, 64% and 58%, respectivelygnnual operating income for
such years. For more information about our seaggpplease read "Management's Discussion and Arsabf Financial Condition and
Results of Operation—Quarterly Results and Seagpriddecause a significant percentage of our a&ssand operating income are
generated in the quarter ending December 31, we lraited ability to compensate for shortfalls ie@@mber quarter sales or earnings by
changes in our operations or strategies in othartgrs. A significant shortfall in results for thearter ending December 31 of any year could
have a material adverse effect on our annual estibperations and on the market price of our comstock. Our quarterly results of
operations also may fluctuate significantly baseduach factors as:

. the timing of new store openings;

. the amount of net sales contributed by new andiegistores;

. the success of our expansion and relocation prggram

. the timing of certain holidays and sales events;

. changes in our merchandise mix;

. general economic, industry and weather conditibas affect consumer spending; and
. actions of competitors, including promotional aitjiv

A failure to grow or maintain our comparable storesales may adversely affect our results of operatian

A number of factors have historically atfat, and will continue to affect, our comparablmatsales results, including:

. competition;

. general regional and national economic conditions;

. inclement weather such as hurricanes Katrina, &ithWilma that affected the Southern U.S. in thieofe2005;
. consumer trends, such as less spending due thetimifaigher gasoline and food prices;

. changes in our merchandise mix;

. our ability to distribute merchandise efficienttydur stores;

. timing and type of sale events, promotional adégibr other advertising;

. new merchandise introductions; and

. our ability to execute our business strategy eiffebt.

Our comparable store sales results haetutited in the past, and we believe such fluctnatinay continue. Our comparable store sales
decreased 7.6% for the fiscal year ended June(®®,2.5% in the six month period ended June 307 28nd 7.9%, and 4.0% in the calendar
years ended 2006, and 2005, respectively. The digpability of our comparable store sales may causeevenue and results of operati
to vary from quarter to quarter, and an unantigigatecline in revenues or operating income mayecaus stock price to fluctuate
significantly. A failure to grow or maintain our mparable store sales results could have a matehedrse effect on our results of operations.
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and Delawae law contain provisions that could make it more dficult for a third party to
acquire us without the consent of our board of diretors.

Provisions in our certificate of incorpaoat and bylaws will have the effect of delayingppeventing a change of control or changes in
our management. These provisions include the fatigw

. the ability of our Board of Directors to issue #wof our common stock and preferred stock witlstatkholder approval;

. require stockholder meetings to only be calledh®yRresident and Chief Executive Officer, the Ghain of the Board or at tl
written request of a majority of the directors tliemffice and not the stockholders;

. prohibit cumulative voting in the election of diters, which would otherwise allow less than a mgjaf stockholders to elect
director candidates;

. the ability of our Board of Directors to make, ale repeal our bylaws without further stockholdeproval; and

. the requirement for advance notice for nominatimnglirectors to our board of directors and forgaysing matters that can be
acted upon by stockholders at stockholder meetings.

In addition, we are subject the provisioh§ection 203 of the Delaware General Corporatiaw. These provisions may prohibit large
stockholders, in particular those owning 15% orenmirour outstanding voting stock, from mergingombining with us.

Our largest stockholder has significant influence wer us, which may affect the rights of other stockblders.

At August 19, 2008, Madison Dearborn Cdgitartners Il, L.P. and its affiliates (collectiyelMadison Dearborn") beneficially owned
approximately 27% of the outstanding shares ofcounmon stock, and thus, has a significant influeme election of our directors, appra
of mergers, sales of assets and other mattersinférests of Madison Dearborn may conflict with thierests of other holders of our comn
stock.

Sales of our common stock by our largest stockholdeould depress our stock price.

If our largest stockholder sells substdraimounts of our common stock, the market priceusfcommon stock could fall. Such sales
might make it more difficult for us to sell equity equity-related securities in the future. As afgiist 19, 2008, Madison Dearborn
beneficially owned approximately 27% of the outsliag shares of our common stock. Pursuant to megish rights we granted to Madison
Dearborn, we have filed, and the SEC has decldfedtize, a registration statement that would eaddadison Dearborn, from time to time,
sell some or all of its shares of common stockh@public market or otherwise.

Because our Board of Directors voted to terminatehte declaration of an annual cash dividend, stockhdérs must look solely to
appreciation of our common stock to realize a gaion their investment.

On February 1, 2008, our Board of Directarted to terminate the declaration of an annust avidend. The Board of Directors
indicated that it will consider the full range dfeainatives with regard to the use of any excesh @law in the future. Our future dividend
policy is within the discretion of our Board of Bators and will depend upon various factors, iniclgaur business, financial condition,
results of operations, capital requirements andstment opportunities.
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Accordingly, stockholders must look solely to amiation of our common stock to realize a gain agirtmvestment. This appreciation may
not occur.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None
Item 2. Properties

Stores.  We lease all of our stores from unaffiliatettdtparties normally through non-cancelable lease®pt one located adjacent to
our distribution facility. At June 30, 2008, thamaining terms of our store leases generally ranga §ix months to five years with a small
percentage out to ten years. The average initial &f a store lease is approximately five yearfwiptions available for renewal. We intend
to continue to lease all of our new stores fronffiilided third parties. Leases may contain reneglalises which are often executed and may
contain additional terms regarding percentage mif payments. Our store leases typically includeKliauses," which allow us, at our opti
to exit the lease 24 to 36 months after enteriegehse.

Distribution Facilities and Corporate Headquarters. We own approximately 1,318,000 square feetisifidution facilities and a
79,000 square foot building which houses our catooffice in the Dallas, Texas metropolitan area.

We have leases on three parcels of lamghpfoximately 444,000 square feet, two of whichfardrailer storage and the third parcel is
for a 30,000 square foot building. The leasesritar storage expire in April 2009 and Decembet2and the lease for the third parcel and
building expires February 2011. We believe our entrdistribution facilities are adequate to meetreguirements for the next several years.
We will, however, need to acquire or lease addéiavarehouse space in approximately three to fearsgto accommodate our distribution
requirements as our store base grows.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

During 2001 and 2002, we were named agendant in three complaints filed in the Superiou@ of California in and for the County
of Los Angeles. The plaintiffs sought to certifgtatewide class made up of some of our currenf@mnaer employees, which they claim are
owed compensation for overtime wages, penaltiesrardest. The plaintiffs also sought attorney&ssfand costs. In October 2003, we ent
into a settlement agreement with a sub-class cktipdaintiffs consisting of manager-in-training andnagement trainees which was paid in
November 2005 with no material impact to our finahstatements. In August 2008, our motion fc-certification of the class of remaining
plaintiffs was granted, thereby dismissing the@tssl action claim. However, we expect the plaintdfappeal this ruling and some may pursue
their claims individually. A similar lawsuit, whichlso alleges claims concerning meal and rest ggrivas filed in Orange County, Califor
in 2004 by managers, managers-in-training andtassisianagers and an amended complaint was filédrinary 2007. This case is still in
the discovery phase and the plaintiffs have bedared to move for class certification. We do nqiest these complaints to have a material
impact on our financial statements.

We intend to vigorously defend all pendawgions. We do not believe these or any other lpgaieedings pending or threatened against
us would have a material adverse effect on ounfirgd condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Secity Holders
None.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market For Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities

Our common stock is listed on the NASDA®@I&I Market under the symbol "TUES." The followitadple sets forth for the periods
indicated the high and low sales prices per shareported on the NASDAQ Global Market.

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

First quartel $13.52 $ 8.5¢

Second quarte $ 9.5¢ $ 4.41

Third quarte! $6.11 $ 4.0¢

Fourth quarte $ 5.9C $ 3.9C
Six Months Ended June 30, 2007*

First quartel $17.87 $14.5¢

Second quarte $15.5¢ $12.1(
Year Ended December 31, 2006

First quartel $23.9¢ $19.7:

Second quarte $23.21 $12.9i

Third quartel $15.37 $12.0(

Fourth quarte $19.0z $13.6:

* We changed our fiscal year end to June 30 effedtime 30, 2007. Accordingly, our fiscal period ehdene 30, 2007 was comprised
of only two fiscal quarters.

On August 28, 2008, the last reported patz for our common stock on the NASDAQ Global kitrwas $4.33 per share. As of
August 28, 2008, there were approximately 29 hasldérecord of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

We have declared and paid the followinguahicash dividends:

2007 2006
Payment dat March 30, 200 March 30, 200
Dividend per common sha $0.80 $0.80

Total dividend $33.1 million  $33.1 million

On February 1, 2008, our Board of Directarted to terminate the declaration of an annust avidend. The Board of Directors
indicated that it will consider the full range dfeanatives with regard to the use of any excesh @law in the future.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The information contained in Item 12 ofstiiorm 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.
Repurchases of Common Equity

We do not have a stock repurchase progosiradr common stock.
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Stock Price Performance

The following graph illustrates a companisid the cumulative total stockholder return (cheunmgstock price plus reinvested dividends)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the sinth®oended June 30, 2007, and the four years ddeesimber 31, 2006 through 2003, of
(1) our common stock, (2) the S&P 500 Index anda(Beer group of companies consisting of Big Lits,; TIX Companies Inc.; Dollar Tr
Stores Inc.; Family Dollar Stores, Inc.; Williamst®ma Inc.; Bed Bath & Beyond Inc.; Ross Stores; I@ost Plus, Inc.; and the Bombay
Company. The chart assumes that $100 was investBdcember 31, 2003 in our common stock and eattheafomparison indices, and
assumes that all dividends were reinvested.

Comparison of Total Return of the Company, Peer Grap and Broad Market

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG TUESDAY MORNING CORP.,
S&P 500 INDEX AND PEER GROUP INDEX
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ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON JUNE 30, 2003
ASSUMES DIVIDEND REINVESTED
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 3008

ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth the seleatedsolidated financial and operating data fordisears ended June 30, 2008, and 2007, tt
months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, and as efthef, each of the four years ended December@®l5,2005, 2004, and 2003. The
statement of operations data for the fiscal yedednJune 30, 2008, the six-month period ended 3002007, the years ended December 31,
2006, and 2005 and the balance sheet data as@B0y2008, and 2007 are derived from our audibedalidated financial statements that
appear herein. The statement of operations dathédiscal year ended June 30, 2007 is derived fvar unaudited consolidated financial
statements. The six-month period ended June 3®& 200 the balance sheet data as of June 30, 28@aved from our unaudited
consolidated financial statements that are includeahbe respective Form 10-Q. The statement ofatjmrs data for the year ended
December 31, 2003 and the
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balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006, 2008, and 2003 are derived from our audited conatdidl financial statements that are not
included in this Form 10-K.

The selected consolidated financial andatprey data should be read in conjunction with "gement's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operation" and aonsolidated financial statements and relatédsnhereto included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.

Fiscal Year Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30, Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2007 2006 2006 2005(5) 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share and number of gtes)

Statement of Operations Data:

Net sales $885,28. $924,19¢ $408,52( $395,42¢ $911,10° $931,82° $897,84. $822,64¢
Cost of sale: 562,57¢ 578,88: 257,85: 247,56 568,59: 574,54¢ 556,62: 513,09°

Gross profit 322,70: 345,31t 150,66 147,86« 342,51: 357,28: 341,21¢ 309,54¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 297,85: 296,63: 144,96: 132,39( 284,06( 260,73t 237,12° 210,15¢

Operating incom: 24,85 48,68¢ 5,707 15,47: 58,45: 96,54¢ 104,09: 99,391
Loss on early extinguishment of de — — — — — — — (3,859
Net interest and other exper (2,719 (1,527 (65€) (26€) (1,133 (526) (2,27%) (8,289
Income before income tax 22,13: 47,16¢ 5,051 15,20¢ 57,32 96,01¢ 101,81¢ 87,25¢
Income tax expens 7,63¢ 17,094 1,97(C 5,76¢ 20,89 35,06( 39,19¢ 33,59¢
Net income $ 14,49¢ $ 30,07 $ 3,081 $ 943¢ $36,42¢ $6095¢ $ 62,617 $ 53,66]

Earnings per shar

Basic $ 03 $ 07¢ $ 007 $ 02¢ $ 08 $ 148 $ 158 $ 132

Diluted 0.3t 0.7z 0.07 0.2: 0.87 1.4€ 1.5C 1.2¢
Weighted average shares outstand

Basic 41,43¢ 41,43 41,43: 41,38( 41,39: 41,26¢ 41,04¢ 40,51:

Diluted 41,49¢ 41,631 41,631 41,647 41,647 41,77( 41,764 41,44:

Dividends per common sha $ — $ 08 $ 08 $ 08 $ 08 $ 06t % — % —

Operating Data:
Number of stores

Beginning of perioc 81C 762 79t 732 732 662 577 EilS
Opened during perio 48 63 27 35 71 81 89 74
Closed during perio (16) (15) 12 (5) (8) 11) 4) 12
Open at end of peric 842 81C 81C 762 79t 732 662 577
Comparable store sales (decrease) incree (7.6)% (5.6)% 2.5)% 7.9% (7.9% 4.00% 1.7% 3.4%
Average sales per store(2), $ 1,07¢ $ 1,17¢ $ 51z $ 532 $ 1,19 $ 1,33C $ 142¢ $ 1,481
Inventory turnover(3 2.1 2.2 2.1 2.3 2.2 2.5 2.8 3.2
As of June 30, As of December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:

Working capital $168,13( $165,37: $153,42( $161,09' $152,64( $115,44( $ 60,95«
Inventories 240,99t  288,79: 241,66( 242,67 230,63¢ 189,13. 143,02
Total asset 341,77t 394,32  352,30° 393,13: 379,92° 336,12( 253,39:
Total debt, including current portic 8,50( 56,50( 21,00( — — — —
Total stockholders' equi 232,91 215,44 214,00 243,87° 23536. 197,15( 132,09:
1) Stores are included in the same store sales ctitmulat the beginning of the quarter following #eniversary date of the store opening. Storesréhatate within the same

geographic market or modify their available respifice are still considered same store for purpafsiés computation. The number of days our stamesopen may fluctuate frc
period to period.

) Average sales per store is the sum of the aver@gs per store for each quarter.
?3) Inventory turnover is the ratio of cost of salesw@rage inventory. Average inventory is calculdtgdaking the average of the previous year-endcadter-end inventory levels

throughout the year.
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(4) A significant portion of our revenues and net eagsiare realized during the period from Octobesugh December while the increase in merchandisehpises in preparation °
this holiday selling season occurs in prior months.

(5) Based on certain views expressed in a letter ofugel 7, 2005 from the Office of the Chief Accourttaf the Securities and Exchange Commission tatherican Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, we reviewed our agtting policies and practices associated with ojpegdeases. Consistent with industry practiceshigeorically reported
straight-line rental expense beginning on the Ieasemencement date. This had the effect of exctuthie rent holiday associated with the pre-opeoiniguild-out period of our
stores from the calculation of the period over whiee expensed rent. Following our review, we medifour accounting policies such that we begin iogrrent expense on the
date we take possession of or have the right tdhespremises.

As a result of this adjustment, we recorded a @ames;tnon-cash, $3.9 million ($2.4 million, net atbme tax) cumulative charge to earnings durinditsequarter of the 2005
calendar year. The adjustment did not impact hisabor future net cash flows or the timing of th@yments under related leases. We believe thatevdease accounting
policies will not have a material effect on futwliuted earnings per share. Prior years' finarsti@lements were not restated as the impact oisthug was immaterial to
previously reported results for any individual goais periods.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operation

The following discussion and analysis should belri@aconjunction with "Selected Financial Data" aodr consolidated financial
statements and related notes there to includedwtisee in this Form 10-K.

Overview

. We sell upscale, name brand home furnishings, hearss, gifts and related items significantly beletail prices charged by
department and specialty stores in 842 stores @fnmut 47 states. We have a unique event-basedgsstliategy that creates a
sense of urgency and excitement for our custormss.ba

. Our store base grew approximately 4% over the 12thsoended June 30, 2008 and the six months ented3D, 2007, and
approximately 9% to 10% per year for each of thergour calendar years. During the fiscal yearezhdune 30, 2008, we
increased our store base by a net of 32 storesndptire six months ended June 30, 2007, we incdeasestore base by a net
of 15 stores compared to 30 stores during the geried last year. During the calendar year 200@weanded our store base
by a net of 63 stores.

. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, wezadloperating cash flow to pay down the balanceuofrevolving credit
facility. As a result, the balance on our revolvargdit facility at June 30, 2008 was $8.5 millascompared to $56.5 million
at June 30, 2007.

. The home furnishings related industry has beentieg@impacted by macro-economic pressures, irsgéaupply and
competition as well as a highly competitive andnpotional environment. Beginning with the quartedes September 30,
2004, we posted consecutive negative comparalle sédes through the quarter ended June 30, 2008 1dbthis time,
however, we have continued to generate positiveatipg income, cash flow and earnings per shar@oannual basis.

. The retail home furnishings industry has been neglgtimpacted by increased supply and competitidthin an already high!
competitive promotional environment, a trend weexd is likely to continue in the near term andemtially longer. As a
closeout retailer of home furnishings, we currertiynpete against a diverse group of retailersudioh department and
discount stores, specialty and e-commerce retailgismass merchants, which sell, among other ptsdueme furnishing
products similar and often identical to those wie ¥¢ée also compete in particular markets with bsgantial number of
retailers that specialize in one or more typesawhé furnishing and houseware products that we delhy of these competito
have substantially greater financial resources talo. Our competitors' greater financial resosiaow them to initiate and
sustain aggressive price competition, initiate bewanarketing campaigns that reach a larger custbas®, fund ongoing
promotional events and communicate more frequemitly existing and potential customers.
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In response to this trend in the retail home furinigs industry, we have been focused internalljngglementing various
strategic initiatives that we believe will offséietimpact of this trend including, but not limitex striving to provide a
merchandise assortment that evolves and adapts tthanging needs and preferences of the our castmase, continuing to
review the individual contributions of the existiapre base and making decisions about the fufureividual store location:
including whether to close or relocate them, seggkinimprove overall supply chain efficiency incing reviewing operational
practices such as freight costs, vendor paymemist@nd distribution processes and increasing iovenrns, and striving to
optimize our marketing plan by maximizing traffiacreasing comparable store sales and expandingutihent customer base,
while also increasing cost efficiency. We are alsiving to optimize our purchasing of inventoryldest match customer
demand.

Our ability to continuously attract buying opporities for closeout merchandise and to anticipatesumer demand as close
merchandise becomes available represents an untgitaour business. By their nature, specificselout merchandise items
are generally only available from manufacturersandors on a non—recurring basis. As a result, eveat have long-term
contracts with our vendors for supply, pricing oc@ss to products, but make individual purchasesibexs, which are often for
large quantities. Although we have many sourcas@fichandise and do not foresee any shortage edaldsnerchandise in tl
near future, we cannot assure that manufacturersrators will continue to make desirable closeoetahandise available to
us in quantities or on terms acceptable to usairdbr buyers will continue to identify and takevadtage of appropriate buyi
opportunities. Since this uncertainty is a by-pmidf our business, we expect it to be an ongoorgern.

The stability of our earnings is also heavily imficed by macroeconomic factors. As the economydwg® or worsens our
business is often similarly impacted. Macroeconofa@tors, such as the current conditions in the detl housing markets,
have impacted and will continue to impact our basiby decreasing the disposable income of ounfi@teonsumers. The
decline in consumer confidence levels has alscahaelyative impact on consumers' ability and wiliegs to spend
discretionary income. At this time, we view theedition of the economy to be uncertain, which dagsatiow us a high degree
of visibility or certainty in predicting our earrgs.

Beginning in January 2007, we reassessed our setkeprogram. The decision was made to open feawrstores and execl
more expansions and relocations with our existiogesbase. For both new stores and relocationsyrev@egotiating upgraded
sites. With the expansion opportunities, we willriwavith high producing stores and intend to incectiee selling square
footage.

In April 2007, we amended our credit facility. Thmendment provides for, among other things: thernskbn of the maturity
date to December 2010; changes in applicable comenit fees and interest rates; a reduction of theeles' revolving credit
commitment from $210 million to $200 million; andequirement that the principal amount of the @utding loans may not
exceed $30 million for 15 consecutive days durlmgperiod from December 1 to January 31.

On April 30, 2007, our Board of Directors approvedhange in our fiscal year end from December 3luite 30, effective
June 30, 2007. The six month results being repdoyeds relate to the transitional six month figoatiod ended June 30, 2007.
For discussion purposes, we are comparing theetuiitancial statements for the year ended Jun2@I8 with the unaudited
financial statements of the year ended June 307 204 the financial statements for the six monttded June 30, 2007 with
the unaudited financial statements for the six merinded June 30, 2006. Due to the seasonalityrdfusiness including the
significant portion of sales and earnings that falleee in the quarter ended December 31, compariabiine six
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months ended June 30, 2007 to the fiscal year ehaleel 30, 2008 or the calendar year ended Dece3db@006 would not be
meaningful.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's Discussion and Analysis igthagpon our consolidated financial statements, vhve been prepared in accordance
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates. The preparation of these financiadistahts requires us to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of cedssets, liabilities, sales and expenses, aatkretisclosure of contingent assets
liabilities. On a recurring basis, we evaluate significant estimates which are based on histosgakrience and on various other
assumptions that we believe are reasonable undeirtumstances. Actual results may differ fronsthestimates under different assumpt
or conditions.

We believe the following critical accourgipolicies affect our more significant judgments @stimates used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.

Inventory—OQOur inventories are stated at the lower of cosharket using the retail inventory method for storeentory and the
specific identification method for warehouse in@gt Amounts are removed from inventory based er#tail inventory method which
applies a cost-to-retail ratio to our various fdedaiductions such as sales, markdowns, and sharg¢rive at our cost of sales. Buying,
distribution, freight and certain other costs apitalized as part of inventory and are expenseambsisof sales as the related inventory is sold.
The retail inventory method, which is used by a banof our competitors, involves management esémuaith regard to items such as
markdowns and inventory. Such estimates may sa@ifly impact the ending inventory valuation att@swell as the amount of gross
margin recognized.

We capitalize into inventory all merchard@osts and certain costs incurred to purchasibdite and deliver merchandise to our stores
in order to more accurately match the cost of nmeandise with the timing of its sale. These costsrarieided in cost of sales when the
merchandise is sold. Other cost of sales compoiecitsle merchandise markdowns, shrink and damaggsh are expensed as they are
incurred.

We conduct full physical inventories atstthres at June 30 and December 31 to measuretmsobh hand and make appropriate
adjustments to our financial statements. Duringogsrfor which physical observations do not ocewe,utilize an estimate for recording
shrinkage reserves based on our historical expegirom the results of our physical inventoriesisTéstimate may require a favorable or
unfavorable adjustment to actual results to ther@xhat our subsequent actual physical inventyiidd a different result. Thus, the
difference between actual and estimated amountscanase fluctuations in the quarters ending in Mamth September , but the difference is
not a factor in the quarters ending in DecemberJame. Since we conduct physical inventory coumitset a year, the subjective nature of our
shrink percentage is reduced and our exposurestask of a significant error is minimized. In atiloin, we have loss prevention programs
policies that we believe minimize shrinkage. Altgbunventory shrinkage rates have not fluctuatgdiicantly in recent years, if the actual
rates were to differ from our estimates, then iiewis to the inventory shrinkage expense could Qaired.

Inventory is the largest asset on our liaaheet and represented approximately 71%, 7386206 of total assets at June 30, 2008, anc
2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively. Inverdegyeased 16.6% or $47.8 million from June 30720QJune 30, 2008, primarily due to
a reduction in purchasing levels during the thind fourth quarters of 2008. Inventory increased®%9or $47 million from June 30, 2006 to
June 30, 2007 primarily due to early purchaseswadriably priced utilitarian and seasonal merchandis well as lower sales per store year
over year. On a per store basis, inventory decded8& % from June 30, 2007 to June 30, 2008 andased 12.4% from
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June 30, 2006 to June 30, 2007. At December 31,26@entory increased 5.2% or $12.0 million to $Z4million from $230.6 million at
December 31, 2005. On a per store basis, invediecyeased approximately 3.2%, primarily due todacgon in purchasing levels during t
third and fourth quarters of calendar year 2006.

Markdowns—We have used markdowns to promote the effectidetiamely sale of merchandise that allows us to =bestly provide
fresher merchandise to our customers. We are &lsong markdowns coupled with promotional evetdadrive traffic and stimulate sales
during non-sales event periods. Markdowns may ipgoégary or permanent. Temporary markdowns are ftesagnated period of time with
markdowns recorded based on quantities sold dtinegeriod. Permanent markdowns may vary througth@ugjuarter or year in timing with
higher markdowns traditionally recorded in the ¢eir ended June 30 and December 31 due primardigasonal merchandise. Permanent
markdowns are charged to cost of sales immediatedged on the total quantities on-hand in the stovesreview all inventory during each
quarter on a continual basis to ensure all necggse actions are taken to adequately value roteritory at the lower of cost or market.
These actions which involve actual or planned peenamarkdowns are considered by management toeb&pipropriate prices to stimulate
demand for the merchandise. In addition to regulsaVviewing inventory levels to identify slow-mogmerchandise, management also
considers current and anticipated demand, custpreéerences, age of merchandise and seasonal freddgermining markdowns. Our
markdowns, as a percentage of total sales, hawerggnbeen consistent from year to year. Changesarkdowns from period-to-period are
discussed as a part of our Results of Operatioalysia below. Actual required permanent markdovwemda differ materially from
management's initial estimates based on futur@mestdemand or economic conditions. The effect@b& markdown in the value of our
inventory at June 30, 2008 would result in a declimgross profit and diluted earnings per sharetfe fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 of
$1.2 million and $0.02, respectively.

Insurance and Self-Insurance ReservesWe use a combination of insurance and self-instggtans to provide for the potential
liabilities associated with workers' compensatipeneral liability, property insurance, director anfficers' liability insurance, vehicle liability
and employee health care benefits. Our stop logsslper claim are $500,000 for workers' compepsatb250,000 for general liability, and
$150,000 for medical. Liabilities associated whk tisks that are retained by us are estimatgohiity by historical claims experience, seve
factors and the use of loss development factors.ifi$urance liabilities we record are primarilylugihced by changes in payroll expense,
sales, number of vehicles, and the frequency angtisg of claims; and include a reserve for claimsurred but not yet reported. Our self-
insurance reserves for workers' compensation, geliahility and medical, in total, were $9.4 milii, $1.7 million, and $1.0 million at
June 30, 2008, respectively. Expenses during salfiyear ended June 30, 2008 were $3.1 millior8 80llion and $7.1 million, respective
At June 30, 2007, our self-insurance reserves wkers' compensation, general liability and medicatotal, were $10.0 million,
$1.0 million, and $0.7 million, respectively. Expas during the six months ended June 30, 2007 $ie@emillion, $0.4 million and
$2.9 million. At December 31, 2006, our self-inswra reserves for workers' compensation, genetalitiaand medical, in total, were
$10.1 million, $1.1 million, and $0.7 million, resgtively. Our estimated reserves may be materifffgrent from our future actual claim
costs, and, in the future, if we conclude an adjesit to our reserves is required, the liabilityl wikn be adjusted accordingly in the period
that determination is made. There were no matehiahges in the estimates or assumptions usedaomat self-insurance liabilities during
the periods presented. We recognize insurance sgpdrased on the date of an occurrence of a ldssling the actual and estimated ultirr
costs of our claims. Claims are paid from our resgand our current period insurance expense usstadj for the difference in prior period
recorded reserves and actual payments as a chaegémate. Current period insurance expensedraikale the amortization of our
premiums paid to our insurance carriers.
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Stocl-based compensatio—The Compensation Committee of our Board of Diressemd, through express consent of the
Compensation Committee, the CEO are authorizedatiot gtock options and restricted stock awards fiiome to time to eligible employees
and directors. We typically grant approved optiwiith exercise prices equal to the market pricewasfammon stock on the date of the op
grant. The majority of the options granted vestydaver periods of four to five years and expirden years. On January 1, 2006, we adopted
the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), "Share Basechi®an," which requires that companies measure arajréze compensation expense at
an amount equal to the fair value of share-basghpats granted under compensation arrangementsaWiglate the fair value of stock
options using the Black-Scholes option pricing moBetermining the fair value of share-based awatdbe grant date requires judgment in
developing assumptions, which involve a numberasfables. These variables include, but are notdidhio, the expected stock price volat
over the term of the awards, the expected divideéeld and expected stock option exercise behalnaaddition, we also use judgment in
estimating the number of share-based awards thabgurected to be forfeited.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the ipeis indicated, selected statement of operatiotes éapressed as a percentage of net sales, as
well as the number of stores open at the end df padod.

Fiscal Year Ended Six Months Ended Calendar Year Ended
June 30, June 30, December 31,
2008 2007 2007 2006 2006 2005
Net sales 100.% 100.(% 100.(% 100.% 100.(%  100.(%
Cost of sale: 63.t 62.€ 63.1 62.€ 62.4 61.7
Gross profit 36.t 37.4 36.¢ 37.4 37.€ 38.:
Selling, general and administrative expe 33.¢ 32.1 35.t 33.t 31.2 28.C
Operating incom: 2.8 5.3 14 3.9 6.4 10.4
Net interest and other exper 0.3 (0.2 (0.2 (0.7 (0.7 (0.7)
Income tax expens 0.€ 1.8 0.5 iLE 2.3 3.8
Net income 1€ 3.2 0.8 2.4 4.C 6.5
Number of stores open at end of per 842 81C 81C 762 79t 732

Selling, general and administrative expsrege comprised of wages and benefits, rent angpaccy costs, depreciation, advertising,
store operating expenses and corporate office.dostgases in dollar amounts of these expenseattaiteutable to increases in the number of
stores and increases in variable expenses duevstoee sales growth. Variable expenses includeglizgnd related benefits, advertising
expense and other expenses such as credit card fees

Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2008 Compared to TwehMonths Ended June 30, 2007

Net sales decreased $38.9 million or 4.8%885.3 million in 2008 from $924.2 million in 2D0of which, sales from non-comparable
new stores increased $30.0 million which was offfised 7.6% decrease in comparable store salesZ0@m, comprised of comparable store
transactions decreasing 6.6% and the comparable aterage ticket decreasing 1.0%. Our averageaasales per store decreased by
$98,000 or 8.3% to $1.1 million in 2008. Comparaditee sales and sales per store decreased pyirda&lto lower traffic levels.
Management believes traffic levels were lower duthe lower discretionary income availability ofrawstomers resulting from the impact of
higher gasoline and energy costs and general edorcmmditions.
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Gross profit decreased $22.6 million o6 $322.7 million in 2008 compared to $345.3 imillin 2007, of which, $14.2 million of
the gross profit decrease was directly attributable decrease in our net sales. Our gross p@fitgmtage decreased to 36.5% in 2008 from
37.4% in 2007. This 0.9% decrease in our grosstgrefcentage was primarily attributable to a 0.i6%ease in our markdowns as a
percentage of sales due to an increase in ouriagedtory and a 0.4% increase in our distributiod &eight expenses resulting from
increased energy costs as a percentage of salese Titreases were offset by a 0.2% decrease shaunkage costs.

Selling, general and administrative expsngereased $1.2 million or 0.4% to $297.9 millior2008 from $296.6 million in the prior
year. The increase was attributable to a $7.5anillincrease in store occupancy costs, store peebonats, and store fixed asset deprecie
expense primarily due to the expansion of our dbase offset by a $3.8 million decrease in advegisxpenses and a $2.4 million decrease
in legal and consulting fees. As a percentage letshese expenses increased 1.5% to 33.6% infA@0832.1% in 2007. The increased
percentage is primarily due to reduced expensedgugy given our negative comparable store salethéoyear.

Net interest and other expense increasériillion to $2.7 million in 2008 compared to $Irbllion in 2007. This increase was
attributable to $1.2 million more interest expedse to higher borrowing levels in the first andaet quarters of fiscal 2008 compared to the
first and second quarters of fiscal 2007.

Income tax expense decreased $9.5 millid¥t6 million in 2008 from $17.1 million in 20071 to decreased profitability. Our effect
tax rate decreased to 34.5% in 2008 from 36.2900V2rimarily due to a reduction in federal taxelated to deductions of state and local
taxes of jurisdictions in which we operate.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2007 Compared to Six Mom$é Ended June 30, 2006

Net sales increased $13.1 million or 3.89%408.5 million for the six months ended JuneZB@7 from $395.4 million in the same
period in 2006, primarily as a result of an inceea48 stores from June 30, 2006 to June 30, 2€B&t by a 2.5% decrease in comparable
store sales from the same period in 2006. Compasibte transactions decreased 3.9% and compatabéeaverage ticket increased 1.5%.
Our average sales per store in the six months ehateel 30, 2007 was $511,700 and, a decrease @Rdr 3.9% from the same period in
2006. The decrease in average sales per storeekasrhpacted by those stores opening in new mapleetsrming below historical trends.
Comparable store sales and sales per store dedne@sarily due to lower traffic levels. Manageméetieves that traffic levels declined due
to the increase in supply of home furnishing prasiuithe promotional environment of home furnishietilers in this sector, as well as the
economic pressures impacting the discretionarynmmecof consumers.

Gross profit increased $2.8 million or 1.884150.7 million in the six months ended JuneZ@7 compared to $147.9 million in the
same period in 2006, primarily due to new storenginopartially offset by a decline in comparablersteales. Our gross profit percentage
decreased to 36.9% in 2007 from 37.4% in 2006. Ul5%6 decrease in our gross profit percentage wamply attributable to a 0.6%
increase in purchasing, freight and distributiopenses due to an increase in delivery surchargehwisulted from higher energy costs
offset by a 0.1% decrease in temporary and perntanarkdowns attributable to a shift in seasonalkal@wns resulting from a reduction in
seasonal inventory on hand during the most recengh.

Selling, general and administrative expsrnsereased $12.6 million or 9.5% to $145.0 milliorihe six months ended June 30, 2007
from $132.4 million in the comparable period in gvéor year. The increase was mostly attributablart $8.7 million increase in store
occupancy costs, store personnel costs and skae disset depreciation expense primarily due tetpansion of our store base. As a
percentage of sales these expenses increased@X8%% in 2007 from 33.5% in 2006.
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The increased percentage was primarily due to estileverage on expenses as a result of our negatimparable store sales for the year and
a 1.4% increase related to store occupancy caets, gersonnel costs and store fixed asset depietiexpense. Selling, general and
administrative expenses per average store was@1®@#h 2007, compared to $178,000 in the same sixtimperiod of 2006, an increase of
1.8%.

Net interest and other expense increase, 880 to $656,000 in the six months ended Jun@W; compared to $266,000 in the same
period in 2006. This increase was attributable3625000 higher net interest expense due to higremage borrowing levels in 2007 than in
2006.

Income tax expense decreased $3.8 miltimm 5.8 million in the six months ended June 3W&to $2.0 million in the six months
ended June 30, 2007 due to decreased profitalfllily effective tax rate increased to 39.0% fordixemonths ended June 30, 2007 from
37.9% for the six month period ended June 30, 2006arily due to the impact of higher state taxenxge on our effective tax rate when
calculated based on six months of operating resatlter than a full year. This impact is driventbg absence of the high volume of sales
from the holiday selling season on the six monthuation.

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2006 Compared tawElve Months Ended December 31, 2005

Net sales decreased $20.7 million or 2.8%11.1 million in 2006 from $931.8 million in 2800f which, $71.5 million of the decrease
was attributable to a 7.9% decrease in comparabie sales from 2005 offset by an increase of $60l&n year over year in sales from non-
comparable new stores. Comparable store transaalecreased 7.3% and comparable store averagedmieased 0.7%. Our average
annual sales per store in 2006 was $1.2 milliaeaease of $138,000 or 10.4% from 2005. The dser@saverage sales per store has been
impacted by those stores opening in new markefsqmeing below historical trends. Comparable st@es and sales per store decreased
primarily due to lower traffic levels. Managememtibves traffic levels declined due to the increassupply of home furnishing products, !
promotional environment of home furnishing retalar this sector, as well as the economic pressomgacting the discretionary income of
consumers.

Gross profit decreased $14.8 million o4 tb $342.5 million in 2006 compared to $357.3 imillin 2005, of which, $20.7 million of
the gross profit decrease was directly attributable decrease in our net sales. Our gross pfitgmtage decreased to 37.6% in 2006 from
38.3% in 2005. This 0.7% decrease in our grosstgrefcentage was primarily attributable to a 0ié&ease in temporary and permanent
markdowns required to sell slow moving inventorg éime addition of promotional events to drive custo traffic, 0.3% increase in shrink
and damages resulting from lower per store invgritrels year over year and a 0.1% increase inhasiog, freight and distribution expen
attributable to an increase in delivery surchargsslting from higher energy costs offset by 0.8%mproved overall product cost.

Selling, general and administrative expsnsereased $23.3 million or 8.9% to $284.1 millinr2006 from $260.7 million in the prior
year. The increase was mostly attributable to a@dfllion increase in store occupancy costs, sp@rsonnel costs and store fixed a
depreciation expense primarily due to the expansfarur store base. Also contributing to the insees $4.0 million in stock compensation
expense as a result of our adoption of FASB Statéide. 123(R) on January 1, 2006. As a percentégales these expenses increased 3.2%
to 31.2% in 2006 from 28.0% in 2005. The incregseaentage is primarily due to reduced leveragexpenses as a result of our negative
comparable store sales for the year and a 2.2%aserrelated to store occupancy costs, store paiscosts and store fixed asset deprecii
expense.

Net interest and other expense increased,$60 to $1.1 million in 2006 compared to $526,00R005. This increase was primarily
attributable to $747,000 higher interest expensetdinigher average borrowing levels in 2006 tmaRd05.
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Income tax expense decreased $14.2 mitic20.9 million in 2006 from $35.1 million in 20@kie to decreased profitability. Our
effective tax rate decreased slightly to 36.4%08&from 36.5% in 2005 primarily due to the netuatiinent of tax reserves related to net
favorable settlements with certain state taxingaities.

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2005 Compared tawElve Months Ended December 31, 2004

Net sales increased $34.0 million or 3.8%331.8 million in 2005 from $897.8 million in 2800f which, $68.6 million of the increase
was attributable to sales from non-comparable rneves offset by a 4.0% decrease in comparable stdes from 2004. Comparable store
transactions decreased 4.4% offset by an incrdadd% in comparable store average ticket. Ouragerannual sales per store decreased by
$99,000 or 6.9% to $1.3 million in 2005. Comparaditee sales and sales per store decreased pyirda€lto lower traffic levels. At the tim
management believed traffic levels were lower dughé lower discretionary income availability ofrawstomers resulting from the impact of
higher gasoline and energy costs.

Gross profit increased $16.1 million or%.% $357.3 million in 2005 compared to $341.2 imillin 2004, of which, $12.9 million of tt
gross profit increase was directly attributabl@amancrease in our net sales. Our gross profitqeage increased to 38.3% in 2005 from
38.0% in 2004. The 0.3% increase in our gross ippeficentage was primarily attributable to a 0.4%rdase in temporary and permanent
markdowns because of fewer promotional events @b2@rsus 2004, a 0.1% increase in inventory stdirto the increased inventory ley
in our stores, and a 0.2% improvement in the leyiagpof our distribution and freight expenses priityaattributable to a packaging
improvement that enabled us to distribute mercteamnriore efficiently.

Selling, general and administrative expsnsereased $23.6 million or 10.0% to $260.7 millio 2005 from $237.1 million in the prior
year. The increase was mostly attributable to 18 #illion on¢«time, non-cash lease accounting adjustment takémeifirst quarter of 2005
and a $15.8 million increase in store occupancyscasore personnel costs, and store fixed aspeeciation expense primarily due to the
expansion of our store base. As a percentage ef Hadse expenses increased 1.5% to 27.9% in 20526.4% in 2004. The increased
percentage is primarily due to reduced expensedeugy given our negative comparable store salethéoyear and includes a 0.4% increase
in rent expense due to the lease accounting adfutamd a 1.0% increase related to store occupansty, store personnel costs and store
fixed asset depreciation expense.

Net interest and other expense decreas@dfillion to $526,000 in 2005 compared to $2.3lioml in 2004. This decrease was
attributable to $600,000 less interest expenseaali@ver average borrowings levels in 2005 thafdA4 and to $1.1 million in less deferred
financing costs amortization due to the replaceréour revolving credit facility in December 2084d less deferred financing costs reqt
for amortization.

Income tax expense decreased $4.1 milids86.1 million in 2005 from $39.2 million in 20@4ue to decreased profitability. Our
effective tax rate decreased to 36.5% in 2005 f88m8% in 2004 primarily due to the net adjustmdriar reserves related to net favorable
settlements with certain state taxing authoritied due to a change in our state tax planning sfiege

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have financed our operations with fugelserated from operating activities and borrowimgder our revolving credit facility. Our
cash flows will continue to be utilized for the @xsion of our business and the use of any excebsvwild be determined by the Board of
Directors. On February 1, 2008, our Board of Dimegtvoted to terminate the declaration of our aistidend. Our borrowings have
historically peaked in the quarter ended SepterBBers we build inventory levels prior to the hojidzlling season. Given the seasonality of
our business, the amount of borrowings under our
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revolving credit facility may fluctuate materiallepending on various factors, including the timgexdr, our needs and the opportunity to
acquire merchandise inventory. We have no off-lmdasheet arrangements or transactions with unadased, limited purpose or variable
interest entities, nor do we have material trangastor commitments involving related persons dities.

Net cash flows provided by operating atiegi for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, wB6e1 million while cash flows used for
operating activities for the six months ended JB3®e2007 were $55.8 million and net cash flows pted from operating activities for
calendar year 2006 was $54.3 million. For the figear ended June 30, 2008, the increase in nbtprasided by operating activities is
primarily due to a decrease in inventory of $47iion offset by a decrease in accounts payabl®1df.4 million along with net income of
$14.5 million, adjusted for depreciation expens8b7.5 million. The decreases in inventory and aot® payable were due to decreased
purchases of new inventory to better match custatearand. For the six months ended June 30, 208 8hibrtfall in cash flow provided by
operating activities of $55.8 million was primardye to early purchases of favorably priced sedsorhutilitarian merchandise resulting in
an increase in inventory of $46.3 million. A sigo#nt portion of our revenues and net earningsesalized during the period from October
through December while an increase in merchandisehpses in preparation for this holiday sellingses occurs in prior months. Negative
comparable sales also contributed to the shontfalhsh flow as net income was only $3.1 millioar Ehe calendar year ended December 31,
2006, the increase in net cash from operating itievof $54.3 million is due primarily due to rnetome of $36.4 million adjusted for
depreciation expense of $16.7 million. Cash antl eagiivalents as of June 30, 2008, and 2007, andrbiger 31, 2006 were $8.6 million,
$10.3 million and, $49.6 million, respectively. Taédas been no material change in our paymentypiligendors.

Net cash used in investing activities was tb capital expenditures of $11.6 million, $6.ilion and $15.7 million, respectively, for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the six montlodeanded June 30, 2007, and the calendar year &wtmanber 31, 2006. During each year,
capital expenditures were primarily for new stopemings, various distribution center equipment iamgrovements and corporate office
equipment and improvements. In fiscal 2009, we efmespend approximately $10.0 million for cap&apenditures, primarily for new store
openings and distribution center equipment and avgments. Capital expenditures will be financedwviinds generated from operations
borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

Net cash used in financing activities 0® 4million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 200&s due primarily to net payments on our
revolving credit facility of $48.0 million. Net chgprovided by financing activities of $23.1 milliéor the six months ended June 30, 2007,
was due primarily to net borrowings on our revodvoredit facility of $56.5 million offset by ourwdend payment of $33.1 million. Net cash
used by financing activities for the years endedddeber 31, 2006, and 2005, of $32.5 million and. B22illion, respectively, were due
primarily to the payment of dividends of $33.1 ol and $26.9 million, respectively.

On March 9, 2007, our Board of Directorsldeed a cash dividend of $0.80 per common shatenhs paid on March 30, 2007 in the
amount of $33.1 million. During the first quartdra®06, our Board of Directors approved a cashdgind of $0.80 per share of common s
totaling $33.1 million and was paid on March 300@0During the second quarter of 2005, our BoarDioéctors approved a cash dividenc
$0.65 per share of common stock totaling $26.9oniland was paid on June 20, 2005. On Februar@@8,2ur Board of Directors voted to
terminate the declaration of an annual cash divdd@he Board of Directors indicated that it willnsader the full range of alternatives with
regard to the use of any excess cash flow in thedu

In December 2004, we entered into a $21Momirevolving credit facility which originally epired in December 2009. Any borrowing
under the revolver incurs interest at LIBOR or phiene rate, depending on the term of the borrowphgs an applicable margin. We incur
commitment fees of up
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to 0.25% on the unused portion of the revolvinglitriacility. This rate is reduced or increasedas average total leverage ratio changes.
indebtedness under the credit facility is secuned ben on our inventory and cash accounts, abageh pledge of our ownership interests in
all of our subsidiaries. On April 18, 2007, we eatkinto an amendment to our existing revolvinglitriacility. The amendment to the
revolving credit facility provides for, among othings: the extension of the maturity date fronc®waber 2009 to December 2010; changes
in applicable commitment fees and interest rate®imection with average leverage ratios; a redoaif the lenders' revolving credit
commitment from $210 million to $200 million; a afge in the total leverage ratio from the ratio "&1@.:0" to the ratio "2:50 to 1:0"; and a
“"clean down" provision requirement that the sunthefaggregate principal amount of the outstandorgowings may not exceed $30 million
for 15 consecutive days during the period from Daoer 1 through January 31.

At June 30, 2008, and 2007, we had $8.5amiand $56.5 million, respectively, outstandimglar the revolving credit facility, with
$26.5 million at June 30, 2007 classified as skemtt due to the clean down provisions under thelvvg credit agreement. We had
borrowing availability of $181.6 million and $134nllion at June 30, 2008, and 2007, respectiv&f/of June 30, 2008, and 2007, we had
outstanding letters of credit of $9.9 million argl®million, respectively. Letters of credit undiee revolving credit facility are primarily for
self-insurance purposes.

The revolving credit facility contains cart restrictive covenants, which among other thimgguire us to comply with certain financial
ratios covering maximum leverage, minimum fixedrggacoverage and minimum interest coverage. O#wtrictions affect our ability to
incur liens or make certain other restricted payisiesell assets or merge or consolidate with ahgrgierson. As of June 30, 2008, we we
compliance with all covenants.

We anticipate that our net cash flows frgperations and borrowings under our revolving drizdiility will be sufficient to fund our
working capital needs, planned capital expendituaad interest payments for the next twelve months.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We had no off-balance sheet arrangement$ &une 30, 2008.
Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contmatbbligations at June 30, 2008 and the effeath sbligations are expected to have on our
liquidity and cash flow in future periods (in thaunsls):

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 2-3 Years 4-5Years >5 Years
Non-cancelable operating leas $190,54: $60,49: $85,82¢ $37,69: $6,53(
Revolving credit facility 8,50( — 8,50( —
Interest on revolving credit facilit 1,04¢ 523 523 — —

Leased maintenance, insurance and t 12,95( 4,111 5,83: 2,562 444

We do not consider merchandise purchaserettd be contractual obligations due to designeéedellation dates on the face of the
purchase order. Contractually required paymentsi@intenance, insurance and taxes on our leaseénties are estimated above as a
percentage of rent based on historical trends.&'aesunts can vary based on multiple factors inatuhflation, macroeconomic conditior
various local tax rates and appraised values ofental properties. Interest paid on our revolvinedit facility is calculated at a 6.15% rate,
which is the rate management utilized for 2009 pilag purposes, and will vary as additional borraygitmre made or paid off early and will
also
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fluctuate with changes in applicable interest raif#s have no capital lease obligations at Jun2G083.
Quarterly Results and Seasonality

The following tables set forth some of quarterly financial data for the ten quarters endlgte 30, 2008. The quarterly information is
unaudited but has been prepared on the same Isabis audited financial statements included elsesvimethis Form 1. We believe that ¢
necessary adjustments (consisting only of norm@lrreng adjustments) have been included to preséty the unaudited quarterly results
when read in conjunction with our consolidated ficial statements and related notes included els@whehis Form 10-K. The results of
operations for any quarter are not necessarilycatdie of the results for any future period. (Inikands, except for per share data and
comparable store sales.)

Quarters Ended

Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31, June 30,
2007 2007 2008 2008
Net sales $201,65¢ $308,68 $178,44¢ $196,49:
Gross profit 75,70¢ 114,90: 63,99¢ 68,09:
Operating income (lost 3,16¢ 34,24( (7,359 (5,19%)
Net income (loss 1,15¢ 20,53¢ (4,697 (2,49¢)
Basic earnings (loss) per shi 0.0z 0.5C (0.17) (0.06)
Diluted earnings (loss) per she 0.0z 0.5C (0.17) (0.06)
Comparable store sales decre (1.5% (7.€)% (8.2% (12.9%
Quarters Ended
March 31, June 30,
2007 2007
Net sales $189,15¢  $219,36-
Gross profit 70,86¢ 79,80(
Operating incom: 1,57¢ 4,12¢
Net income 1,047 2,034
Basic earnings per she 0.0z 0.0t
Diluted earnings per sha 0.0z 0.0t
Comparable store sales increase (decr (5.9% 0.1%
Quarters Ended
March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
2006 2006 2006 2006
Net sales $187,75¢ $207,66! $194,41: $321,26¢
Gross profit 73,591 74,27 73,06¢ 121,58:
Operating incom: 10,42¢ 5,04¢ 5,723 37,25¢
Net income 6,54( 2,89¢ 3,16z 23,82;
Basic earnings per she 0.1¢€ 0.07 0.0¢ 0.5¢
Diluted earnings per sha 0.1¢ 0.07 0.0¢ 0.57
Comparable store sales decre (4.5% (10.8% (4.6% (9.9%

Our quarterly results of operations maytiate based upon such factors as the numberraindjtof store openings, the amount of net
sales contributed by new and existing stores, tixeofrmerchandise sold, pricing, store closingsedocations, competitive factors and gen
economic and weather-related conditions. The tinsiihgales events could impact the weighting ofshitween quarters. We expect to
continue to experience seasonal fluctuations inboginess, with a significant
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percentage of our net sales and operating incoing lgenerated in the December quarter, which iredutie holiday selling season.
Inflation

Inflation has had some effect on our resoftoperations in the current year primarily @nsportation, utilities and waste management
costs. However, in our opinion, the overall effetinflation has not had a material effect on asults of operations. We cannot assure that
inflation will not materially affect us in the futa.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFASING, "Fair Value Measures." SFAS No. 157 defirmsvalue, establishes a framework
for measuring fair value, and requires additionstldsures about fair value measurements. SFASLBIbapplies to fair value measurements
that are already required or permitted by otheoanting standards, except for measurements of dizmed payments and measurements tha
are similar to, but not intended to be, fair vadunel does not change existing guidance as to whethwat an instrument is carried at fair va
The provisions of SFAS No. 157 are effective far thcurring fair value measures for financial stapts issued for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007. The provisions of SFAS NxY, are effective for the non recurring fair valneasures for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November2B®8. We are currently evaluating the impacanij, that the adoption of SFAS No. 157
will have on our consolidated financial statements.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretad® ("FIN 48"), "Accounting for Uncertainty in Inme Taxes," an interpretation of SFAS
No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes." FIN 48 dias the accounting for uncertainty in income taxecognized in an enterprise's finan
statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109. Thepnttation applies to all tax positions accourfitedn accordance with FASB Statement
No. 109 and requires a recognition threshold andsmement attribute for the financial statemendge@ion and measurement of a-
position taken or expected to be taken, in an iretar return. Subsequent recognition, derecogniiod measurement is based on
management's best judgment given the facts, cinaurogs and information available at the reportiatg dFIN 48 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. We adopted itneigions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As a resfithis adoption, the Company
recognized a $145,000 increase in the liabilityuorecognized tax benefits, which was accounted$a decrease to the January 1, 2007
balance of retained earnings.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAST®, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assetsl &imbilities.” This statement permits
entities to choose to measure many financial insénts and certain other items at fair value. Ifffievalue option is elected, unrealized
gains and losses will be recognized in earningsmeah subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159éastafé for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evalgahe impact of this adoption on its consoliddiedncial statement:

In June of 2008, the FASB issued a Staffititm on EITF 03-6-1 "Determining Whether InstrumeGranted in Share-Based Payment
Transactions Are Participating Securities.” The BSBresses whether instruments granted in shaesHpayment transactions are
participating securities prior to vesting and, gfere, need to be included in the earnings alloaati computing earnings per share (EPS)
under the two class method described in paragrélamd 61 of FASB Statement No. 128, "EarningsStere." The FSP is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years bagmafter December 15, 2008 and interim periodfiwithose years. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of this adoptionitsrconsolidated financial statements.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to various market riskduding changes in foreign currency exchange ratesterest rates. Market risk is the
potential loss arising from adverse changes in sigokices and rates, such as foreign currency exghand interest rates. Based on our
market risk sensitive instruments outstanding akuag 30, 2008, as described below, we have detedithat there was no material market
risk exposure to our consolidated financial positiesults of operations or cash flows as of swath.dVe do not enter into derivatives or
other financial instruments for trading or speauapurposes.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates.  We enter into foreign currency forward contsaeith major financial institutions to manage and
reduce the impact of changes in foreign currencharge rates on contractual merchandise purchaesextain international vendors.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, thg wahsactions we hedged were for inventory puretmaders placed with foreign vendors
for which the purchase order had to be settletiénvendor's foreign currency. The periods for tvevéird foreign exchange contracts
correspond to the periods of the hedged transact®ains and losses on forward foreign exchangwaxia are reflected in the statement of
income and were immaterial to us as a whole irfifoal year ended June 30, 2008. At June 30, 2088)ad outstanding forward foreign
currency contracts to purchase approximately $4®1dd U.S. dollar equivalent Euros with maturitresging between 53 and 123 days.

The estimated fair value of foreign curngnontracts represents the amount required to @rttepffsetting contracts with similar
remaining maturities based on quoted market pridedune 30, 2008, the difference between theviine of all outstanding contracts and
face amount of such contracts was immaterial. ddluctuation in exchange rates for these curesncould have a material affect on their
fair value; however, because we only use thesedahfioreign currency contracts to hedge future mbwey purchases at a fixed price in the
vendor's foreign currency at the time the purcluaider is made, any fluctuations in the exchange should not materially affect us.

The table below provides information about forward foreign currency contracts at June2B@8 that are sensitive to foreign currency
exchange rates and presents such information inddl&r equivalents because that is our reporingency. All the related contracts mature
in 2008.

Expected Maturity
(U.S. dollar equivalent in thousands)

Exchange
Contract Notional
Currency Amount Rate Amount
Euro $424,000 1.595: $418,00(

You can find more information about the@etting policies for our forward foreign currenayntracts and our financial instruments in
Notes 1 and 10 of the notes to our consolidateghfital statements included elsewhere in this Fd-K.

Interest Rates. We had outstanding debt in the amount of $8lkomand $56.5 million at June 30, 2008 and 20@8&pectively. We
had no outstanding debt at December 31, 2006 ad8. e use our revolving credit facility to fundraperations as needed. We are exp
to financial market risk due to fluctuating interestes on our revolving line of credit. For exampf a 0.5% increase in rate had occurred
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, tluieese would have resulted in an increase in isttesgpense of approximately $0.3 million.
Any borrowing under our revolver will incur intetest LIBOR or the prime rate depending on the tefrthe borrowing plus an applicable
margin. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2088 IBOR rate varied from 3.61% and 3.39% while prime rate was 5.0%. During the
twelve month periods ended December 31, 2006 af§,20
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the LIBOR and prime rates varied from 4.83% to %4#nd 7.25% to 8.25%, respectively. We incur commaitt fees of up to 0.25% on the
unused portion of the revolving credit facility. i$hate is reduced or increased as our leverageataanges. We do not hold any derivatives
related to interest rate exposure for any of ot €ecilities. Our weighted average interest ratetlie fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 was
6.22%. You can find more information about our dehb¥ote 4 of the notes to our consolidated finahsiatements included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &ia

The following consolidated financial statsrts of Tuesday Morning and its subsidiaries angbReof Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm are included in this Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 206260V F-3
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December 31, 2006, and 20 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equitytferfiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the six nsoertlded June 30, 2007 and the

years ended December 31, 2006, and : F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigear ended June 30, 2008, the six months endwal 3, 2007 and the years

ended December 31, 2006, and 2 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements fofigeal year ended June 30, 2008, the six monthecddne 30, 2007 and the ye

ended December 31, 2006, and 2 F-7

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accotents on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Control Procedures

Based on our management's evaluation (vétticipation of our principal executive officercanur principal financial officer), our
principal executive officer and our principal fir@al officer have concluded that our disclosuretoma and procedures (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e) under the Seesriixchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchaoty) were effective as of June 30,
2008 to ensure that information required to beld&sd by us in this Report on Form 10-K was (1prded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in tlee&ities Exchange Commission's rules and formg2ndccumulated and communicated to
our management, including our principal executind principal financial officers, to allow timely disions regarding required disclosure.

A control system, no matter how well coneei and operated, can provide only reasonableabsiilute, assurance that the objectives of
the control system are met. Because of inhereritaiions in all control systems, no evaluation ofitols can provide absolute assurance that
all control issues, if any, within a company haeeib detected. Accordingly, our disclosure contaold procedures are designed to provide
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the g our disclosure control system are met asdset forth above, our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer have concludédsed on their evaluation as of the end of thege&overed by this report, that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectiyirdvide reasonable assurance that the objeativesr disclosure control system were r
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Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Tuesday Morning is respoeditil establishing and maintaining adequate intaxoiatrol over financial reporting as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or Rule 15(d)-15(f) untlez Exchange Act. Tuesday Morning's internal adrdgver financial reporting is designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding théiléljeof financial reporting and the preparatiohfimancial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accountiimgimies.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Therefore, even
systems determined to be effective can provide mrdgonable assurance with respect to financiedratant preparation and presentation.

Our management (with the participation wf principal executive officer and our principaidincial officer) assessed the effectiveness of
Tuesday Morning's internal control over financigporting as of June 30, 2008. In making this agsest management used the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Colrtrintegrated Framework. Bas
on our assessment, we believe that, as of Jur@0B8, Tuesday Morning's internal control over ficiahreporting is effective based on those
criteria.

The Company's independent registered palsiiounting firm has issued an attestation repothe effectiveness of the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of @80, 2008. That report follows on the next page.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tuesdaiorning Corporation

We have audited Tuesday Morning Corpor&iorternal control over financial reporting aslahe 30, 2008, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiaf the Treadway Commission
(the COSO criteria). Tuesday Morning Corporationanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecagsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management's
Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinanciapBeing. Our responsibility is to express an opiim the Company's internal control ¢
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withstandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg&feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeéliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide redderssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fioai reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financakstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsets that could have a material effect on thenfiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Tuesday Morning Corporatioaintained, in all material respects, effectivieinal control over financial reporting as of
June 30, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdsoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Tuesday Morningd2atijon as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 and the detatesolidated statements of income,
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the figedr ended June 30, 2008, the six months ended3yr2007, and the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, of Tuesday Morning @atjwn and our report dated August 26, 2008 exeesn unqualified opinion
thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Dallas, Texas
August 26, 2008
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal abatver financial reporting that occurred during tast fiscal quarter that have materially
affected or are reasonably likely to materiallyeaffour internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IlI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

The information required by this Item 10nesorporated herein by reference to the disclofawad in our definitive proxy statement to
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A of thixchange Act in connection with Tuesday Morni2§88 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

We have adopted a "Code of Ethics for Sefilmancial Officers" that establishes the ethatahdards to be followed by the persons
serving as principal executive officer, principaancial officer, principal accounting officer corttroller, or persons performing similar
functions. We have also adopted a "Code of Condbet'establishes the business conduct to be fetldwy all of our officers, employees ¢
members of our Board of Directors. Both are avédlaim our website atww.tuesdaymorning.coonder "Investor Relations—Corporate
Governance."

There have been no changes to the procetiyreshich shareholders may recommend candidatesifdBoard of Directors that have
occurred in the quarter ending June 30, 2008.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 1insorporated herein by reference to the disclofawadin our definitive proxy statement to
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A o thxchange Act in connection with Tuesday Morni2g88 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Médrs

The information required by this Item 12risorporated herein by reference to the disclofaad in our definitive proxy statement to
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A of thxchange Act in connection with Tuesday Morni2g88 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides informationcat our common stock that may be issued upon thecese of options under equity
compensation plans approved by stockholders dsedidcal year ended June 30, 2008. We do not &ilayequity compensation plans that
were not approved by our stockholders.

Number of Securities Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
to Be Issued
Upon Exercise of Future Issuance
Outstanding Options,  Weighted-Average Under Equity
Exercise Price of Compensation Plans

Warrants and Rights  Outstanding Options, (excluding securities
reflected in column (a))

Plan Category (thousands) Warrants and Rights (thousands)
(@) (b) ©
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security did 2,000 $ 17.6¢€ 1,46¢€
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Sectuitibjders — — —
Total 2,00C $ 17.6¢€ 1,46¢

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Traresctions, Director Independence

The information required by this Item 13nisorporated herein by reference to the disclofaad in our definitive proxy statement to
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A of thixchange Act in connection with Tuesday Morni2§88 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14nesorporated herein by reference to the disclofawad in our definitive proxy statement to
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A of thixchange Act in connection with Tuesday Morni2§88 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

PART IV
ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes
(@  The following documents are filed as part of thisri 10-K.

(1) Financial Statements:

(2)  The list of financial statements required by titésni is set forth in Item 8.
Financial Statement Schedules:

All financial statement schedules calledunder Regulation S-X are not required under ¢éh&ted instructions, are not material or are
not applicable and, therefore, have been omitteat@included in the consolidated financial statet:er notes thereto included elsewhere in
this Form 10-K.
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(3)  Exhibits:
Exhibit No. Description
3.1.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Tuesday Morningroration (the "Company") (incorporated by refeeto Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 ({dle333-46017) as filed with the Securities andhamge Commission
(the "Commission") on February 10, 19¢
3.1.2 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Ingoration of the Company (incorporated by refereiocEéxhibit 3.3 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Fo-1/A (File No. 33:-74365) as filed with the Commission on March 299y
3.1.%2 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Ingoration of the Company dated May 7, 1999 (inceatesd by reference to
Exhibit 3.1.3 to the Company's Form-Q as filed with the Commission on May 2, 20
3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company (iraratpd by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the CompaRgisn 8-K dated
December 14, 2006 as filed with the Commission eadinber 20, 200¢
10.1.1 Tuesday Morning Corporation 1997 Long-Term Equitgdntive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi to the
Company's Registration Statement on Fo-4 (File No. 33-46017) as filed with the Commission on February1d98) t
10.1.2 Amendment No. 1 to the Tuesday Morning Corporali®87 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporalgdreference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Company's Registration State#me Form S-1/A (File No. 333-74365) as filed witle Commission on
March 29, 1999)
10.1.. First Amendment to the Tuesday Morning Corporafi®87 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporabgdeference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form-Q as filed with the Commission on August 1, 200!
10.z Stockholders Agreement, dated as of December 2%, 1 and among the Company, Madison Dearbornt@ldpértners
II, L.P. and the executives listed on Scheduleddited thereto (incorporated by reference to Ekhiill to the Company's
Registration Statement on Forr-4 (File No. 33-46017) as filed with the Commission on February1998)
10.2 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporateéfeyence to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company's Redgfistn Statement on
Form &1 (File No. 33-74365) as filed with the Commission on March 12999t
10.4 Employment Agreement, dated as of July 25, 200@&rybetween the Company and Kathleen Mason (incatgd by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company's Fori-Q as filed with the Commission on November 7, 206(
10.5.1 Tuesday Morning Corporation 2004 Long-Term Equitgdntive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appeidio the
Company's Definitive 14A Proxy Statement as filathihe Commission on April 19, 2004)
10.5.2 First Amendment to the Tuesday Morning Corpora684 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorporalgdeference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Form-Q as filed with the Commission on August 1, 200!
40
Exhibit No. Description
10.5.2 Second Amendment to the Tuesday Morning CorpmmétD04 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (incorpethby reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Forr-K as filed with the Commission on November 8, 200
10.6.1 Credit Agreement, dated as of December 22, 20Ghbyamong Tuesday Morning, Inc., Tuesday Morningp@ation, TMI
Holdings, Inc., the lenders who are or may becorparty to the agreement, Wachovia Bank, Nationalo&gtion, as
Administrative Agent, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and3adle Bank National Association, as Co-Syndicaf@ents, U.S. Bank
National Association and Sovereign Bank, a-Documentation Agents, Wachovia Capital MarketsClas a Co-Lead
Arranger and Sole Book Manager, and Wells FargdkBBIA. as a Co-Lead Arranger (incorporated by nexfiee to
Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's Form-K/A as filed with the Commission on February 240@L
10.6.z First Amendment to Credit Agreement (incorporatgddference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Forka @s filed with the
Commission on March 20, 200
10.7 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement underThesday Morning Corporation 1997 Loiigrm Equity Incentive Plan a



10.€

10.¢

10.1(

10.11

10.12

10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢

the Tuesday Morning Corporation 2004 Long-Term Bglricentive Plan (incorporated by reference toiBixH0.1 to the
Company's Form-K as filed with the Commission on May 3, 200=

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under Tuesday Morning Corporation 1997 Lohgrm Equity Incentive Pla
and the Tuesday Morning Corporation 2004 Long-TEruity Incentive Plan (incorporated by referenc&xaibit 10.2 to the
Company's Form-K as filed with the Commission on May 3, 200=

Letter Agreement dated July 18, 2006 from Kathlekson, on behalf of the Company, to Elizabeth Setleo (incorporated t
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Fo-K as filed with the Commission on July 18, 200¢

Description of Directors Compensation (incorporaigdeference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Fa@¥Q as filed with the
Commission on May 4, 2007)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for dioestunder the Tuesday Morning Corporation 2004 Edagn Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibil to the Company's Form 8-K as filed with @@mmission on
November 6, 2007)

Form of Confidentiality Agreement for directorsdorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Cany{s Form 8-K as filed
with the Commission on December 19, 200

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for dioestunder the Tuesday Morning Corporation 1997 Edagn Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi2 to the Company's Form 8-K as filed with @@mmission on
December 19, 2007)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for emphksyunder the Tuesday Morning Corporation 1997 {oergn Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi3 to the Company's Form 8-K as filed with @@mmission on
December 19, 200"

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for empksyunder the Tuesday Morning Corporation 2004 {Tergn Equity

Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExtHibi4 to the Company's Form 8-K as filed with @@mmission on
December 19, 2007)
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Exhibit No. Description
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company's Form 10-HKiled with the
Commission on March 9, 200

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
31.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer of t@®mpany Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 200z
31.Zz Certification by the Chief Financial Officer of tl@mpany Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 200z

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of ti@mpany Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, adoptedipntso Section 906 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of tf@ompany Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, adoptedipnt¢o Section 906 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 200z

Management contract or compensatory plan or arraage
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report t
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.

TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION

Date: August 29, 2008 By: /sl KATHLEEN MASON

Kathleen Mason
Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidielow by the following persons on bel
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Name Title Date

/s KATHLEEN MASON August 29
Chief Executive Officer, President and Directerificipal Executive Officer) 2008 ’

Kathleen Masol

/si STEPHANIE BOWMAN Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi(Rerincipal Financial and Accounting August 29,

Stephanie Bowma Officer) 2008
/sl BRUCE A. QUINNELL
Chairman of the Board Augg(s)t829,
Bruce A. Quinnel
/s/ BENJAMIN D.
CHERESKIN . August 29,
Director 5008
Benjamin D. Chereski
/s/ ROBIN P. SELATI o August 29,
irector 5008
Robin P. Selat
/s/ DAVID B. GREEN Sirector August 29,
2008

David B. Greer
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Name

/s/ STARLETTE JOHNSON

Director
Starlette Johnsa
/s/ HENRY F. FRIGON
Director
Henry F. Frigor
/s/ WILLIAM J. HUNCKLER, Il
Director

William J. Hunckler, 1l
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tuesdaiorning Corporation

We have audited the accompanying cons@itiaalance sheets of Tuesday Morning Corporatiaf asne 30, 2008, and 2007 and the
related consolidated statements of income, stodens| equity, and cash flows for the year ende@ Bn 2008, the six months ended Jun:
2007, and the years ended December 31, 2006 artd 2B6se financial statements are the respongibilithe Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on flasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statementened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Tuesday Morning Corporation at June 30, 2008 a¥ 28nd the consolidated results of its operaténkits cash flows for the year ended
June 30, 2008, the six months ended June 30, 20@7he years ended December 31, 2006 and 2068nfarmity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financialesteents, on January 1, 2006 the Company changetkitsod of accounting for stock-based
compensation.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdsoard (United States), the
effectiveness of Tuesday Morning Corporation'srimeécontrol over financial reporting as of June 3008, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued byGloenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission and our report
dated August 26, 2008, expressed an unqualifiesiapithereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Dallas, Texas
August 26, 2008
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Tuesday Morning Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except for share data)

June 30,
2008 2007
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 8,63C $ 10,30¢
Inventories 240,99¢ 288,79:
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 11,29: 5,954
Deferred income taxe — 1,211
Total current asse 260,91¢ 306,25¢
Property and equipment, r 77,31¢ 83,77t
Deferred financing cos 503 704
Other asset 3,04( 3,58
Total Assets $341,77¢ $394,32:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debr — 26,50(
Accounts payabl 63,89¢ 82,45:
Accrued liabilities 28,59t 31,22¢
Deferred income taxe 267
Income taxes payab 27 712
Total current liabilities 92,78¢ 140,88t
Long-term deb 8,50( 30,00(
Deferred ren 4,16: 4,53¢
Deferred income taxe 3,41« 3,45¢
Total Liabilities 108,86¢ 178,88:
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, azab10,000,000 shares, none issued or outsta — —
Common stock, par value $.01 per share, authofi@€dd00,000 shares; 41,816,820, and 41,440,00essmued
and outstanding as of June 30, 2008 and : 41€ 414
Additional paic-in capital 201,15 198,18
Retained earning 31,37¢ 16,88:
Accumulated other comprehensive |i (39 (39
Total Stockholders' Equil 232,91. 215,44(
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equ $341,77¢  $394,32:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Tuesday Morning Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Income

(In thousands, except per share data)

Y Six Month
EnE(}jaerd I)(En(?:d S Years Ended December 3
June 30,200 June 30, 200 2006 2005
Net sales $ 885,28: $ 408,52( $911,10° $931,82°
Cost of sale: 562,57¢ 257,85. 568,59: 574,54t
Gross profit 322,70: 150,66¢ 342,51 357,28:
Selling, general and administrative exper 297,85: 144,96. 284,06( 260,73t
Operating incom: 24,85 5,701 58,45: 96,54¢
Other income (expense
Interest expens (3,929) (1,15¢) (2,299 (1,557)
Interest incomt 157 14¢€ 15¢ 12¢
Other income, ne 1,052 35€ 1,00¢ 897
(2,719 (65€) (1,13)) (526)
Income before income tax 22,13: 5,051 57,32: 96,01¢
Income tax expens 7,63¢ 1,97( 20,89 35,06(
Net income $ 14,49¢ $ 3,081 $ 36,42¢ $ 60,95¢
Earnings Per Share
Net income per common sha
Basic $ 0.3t $ 007 $ 08 $ 1.4¢
Diluted $ 0.3 $ 007 $ 087 $ 1.4¢
Weighted average humber of common sh
Basic 41,43¢ 41,43 41,39: 41,26
Diluted 41,49« 41,637 41,647 41,77(
Dividends per common sha — 3 08 $ 08C $ O0.6F

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Tuesday Morning Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

(In thousands)

Retained Accumulated
Common Stock Earnings Other Total
— Additional (Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders
Paid-In

Shares Amount Capital Deficit) Income (Loss) Equity

Balance at December 31, 20C 41,10 $ 411 $188,96¢ $ 7,74t $ 25 $ 197,15(
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — 60,95¢ — 60,95¢
Unrealized loss on foreign exchange contractsphtetx — — — — (69) (69)
Comprehensive incorr — — — 60,95¢ (69) 60,89(
Shares issued in connection with employee stodbptian/stock purchas

plan 26¢ 3 2,70¢ — — 2,712
Dividends declare — — (1,919 (24,94) — (26,859
Other — — 59 — — 59
Tax benefit of employee stock options exerci — — 1,40t — — 1,40t
Balance at December 31, 20C 41,37C 414 191,22¢ 43,76: (44) 235,36:
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — 36,42¢ — 36,42¢
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange contractsph&tx — — — — 36 36
Comprehensive incorr — — — 36,42¢ 36 36,46¢
Shares issued in connection with employee stodboptian/stock purchas

plan 53 — 514 — — 514
Dividends declare — — — (33,109 — (33,109
Stocl-based compensation expel — — 4,57¢ — — 4,57¢
Tax benefit of employee stock options exerci — — 63 — — 63
Balance at December 31, 20C 41,42 414 196,38: 47,09( (8) 243,87
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — 3,081 — 3,081
Unrealized loss on foreign exchange contractsphtetx — — — — (30) (30
Comprehensive incorr — — — 3,081 (30 3,051
Shares issued in connection with employee stodboptian/stock purchas

plan 17 — 10 — — 10
Adoption of FIN 48, 'Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tax¢ — — — (14%) — (14%)
Dividends declare — — — (33,149 — (33,14
Stocl-based compensation expel — — 1,84¢ — — 1,84¢
Tax benefit of employee stock options exerci — — (56) — — (56)
Balance at June 30, 200 41,44C 414 198,18 16,88: (38) 215,44(
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — 14,49¢ — 14,49¢
Unrealized loss on foreign exchange contractsphtetx — — — — (@D} (@D}
Comprehensive incorr — — — 14,49¢ @ 14,497
Shares issued in connection with employee stoaknitive plar 377 4 3 — — 1
Stocl-based compensation expel — — 3,00(¢ — — 3,00(
Tax benefit of employee stock options exerci — — (26) D — 27
Balance at June 30, 2008 41,817 $ 41€ $201,15: $ 31,37¢ $ (39)$ 232,91:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Tuesday Morning Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

EYrsje(Iard SixEIr\]/I(?:;hs Years Ended December 31,
June 30,200  June 30, 200 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 14496 $ 3,081 $ 36,42¢ $ 60,95¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by (used in) operating activiti
Depreciatior 17,48: 8,85¢ 16,73¢ 14,60¢
Amortization of financing fee 201 93 171 171
Stock based compensation expe 3,174 2,011 4,02¢ —
Loss on disposal of ass¢ 54C 41¢ 352 —
Deferred income taxe 1,407 762 28¢ (1,869
Other nor-cash item: @ (232) 37 (20
Change in operating assets and liabilit
Inventories 47,62 (46,280 (11,489 (41,509
Prepaid and other current ass (5,339 (337) 1,641 (2,069
Other asset 542 1,55¢ (29¢) (1,389
Accounts payabl (17,367 (6,067) 13,53¢ 2,25¢
Accrued liabilities (2,629 (4,717 (6,43¢) 2,82:
Deferred ren (377) (849 187 4,26¢
Income taxes payab (68E) (14,83) 977) (963)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 59,07¢ (55,75%) 54,31 37,27%
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditure (11,567 (6,655  (15,70)  (16,060)
Net cash used in investing activit| (11,567) (6,655  (15,70)  (16,060)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment of dividends to common stockholc — (33,145 (33,107 (26,859
Borrowings under revolving credit facili 220,00( 185,50( 286,50( 230,00(

Repayments under revolving credit facil (268,000 (129,000 (286,50() (230,000
Change in cash overdr: (1,187 — — —
Proceeds from exercise of common stock optionsstoek purchase plan purche — 10 514 2,717
Excess tax benefit related to exercise of stoclonp — — 63 1,40t
Payment of financing fee — (282) — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (49,187 23,08: (32,525 (22,739
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (1,679 (39,330 6,08¢ (1,520
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 10,30: 49,63: 43,54% 45,06°
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 8,63 $ 10,301 $ 49,63: $ 43,54
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paic $ 367t $ 95z $ 2,07¢ $ 1,30
Income taxes pai 11,49 16,21° 22,03¢ 36,46

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sre amounts)
(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We operated 842 discount retail storesriistates as of June 30, 2008 (810, 795 and 732ssavrJune 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006
and 2005 respectively). We sell close-out homeishings, housewares, gifts and related items, whielpurchase at below wholesale prices.
Our stores operate seven days a week and focusrmtie "sale events" that occur in each month pik@anuary and July. We are generally
closed for up to the first two weeks of January dmlg as we conduct physical inventories at abhaf stores.

(a) Basis of Presentation-The accompanying consolidated financial statemi@tade the accounts of Tuesday Morning Corpongtio
a Delaware corporation, and its wholly-owned subsiés. All intercompany balances and transactitmge been eliminated in consolidation.
We operate our business as a single operating sggme

(b) Fiscal Year Change—On April 30, 2007, the Board of Directors of theripany approved a change in the Company's fiseal ye
from December 31 to June 30, effective June 307 20his Form 10-K is an annual report, and incluidésrmation for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008, the six month transitional periodeenJune 30, 2007 and for the twelve month peroded December 31, 2006 and 2005.
The unaudited financial information for the six ntoperiod ended June 30, 2006 is as follows:

Six Months

Ended
June 30,
2006
(unaudited)

Total revenue $395,42¢
Operating incom: 15,47
Income from continuing operations before income 15,20¢
Net income 9,43¢
Net income per common sha

Basic $ 0.2
Diluted $ 0.2¢%

(c) Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash and cash equivalents are comprised of araditreceivables and all highly liquid instruments
with original maturities of three months or lesas@ equivalents are carried at cost, which appratésfair value. At June 30, 2008 and 2!
credit card receivables from third party consuntedit card providers were $5.6 million and $7.1liwril, respectively.

(c) Inventories—Inventories, consisting of finished goods, areestait the lower of cost or market using the rétaiéntory method fo
store inventory and the specific identification haat for warehouse inventory. Amounts are removenhfinventory based on the retail
inventory method which applies a cost-to-retailoréd our various retail deductions (sales, markaevshrink, etc.) to arrive at cost of sales.
Buying, distribution, freight costs and certainetexpenses are capitalized as part of inventalyaa® expensed as cost of sales as the relate
inventory is sold. These capitalized expenses dezun ending inventory totaled $26.8 million ar&8% million at June 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. We expensed $71.5 million, $32.4iomll $69.3 million, and $66.8 million of capitalize
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

inventory costs in cost of sales for the fiscalryeaded June 30, 2008, the six months ended Jyrg08@, and the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

We conduct semi-annual physical inventotdesieasure quantities ¢rand and make appropriate adjustments to our fiahsiatement:
During periods for which physical observations @b @ccur, we utilize an estimate for recording iskaige reserves, based on past historical
trends of physical inventory results. These shigiekeeserves may require a favorable or unfavoradijiestment to actual results to the extent
our subsequent actual physical inventories yialiffarent result. We use markdowns to promote ffecéve and timely sale of merchandise.
Temporary markdowns are for a designated peridanaf with markdowns recorded based on quantitiés charing the period. Permanent
markdowns vary in timing throughout the year, Inat eharged to cost of sales immediately basedtahdaantities on-hand in the stores. We
review all inventory at the end of each quartesdyipd to ensure all necessary price actions aentédk adequately value our inventory at the
lower of cost or market. These actions which ineaketual or planned permanent markdowns are caesidsy management to be the
appropriate prices to stimulate demand for the hrrdise. Actual required permanent markdowns cdifier materially from management's
initial estimates based on future customer demarmtenomic conditions.

(e) Property and Equipment-Rroperty and equipment are stated at cost. Buiddifugniture, fixtures, leasehold improvements and
equipment are depreciated on a straight-line lmags the estimated useful lives of the assets lasis:

Estimated Useful Lives

Buildings 30 year
Furniture and fixture 3to 7 year
Leasehold improvemen Shorter of lease life or life of improvem:
Equipment 51to 10 yeal

Upon sale or retirement of an asset, tletee cost and accumulated depreciation are remipgedour accounts and any gain or loss is
recognized in income. Expenditures for maintenamsepr renewals and repairs are expensed as i, umdle major replacements and
improvements are capitalized.

() Deferred Financing Costs-Deferred financing costs represent fees paid imeotion with obtaining bank and other long-term
financing. These fees are amortized over the tdrineorelated financing using the effective intéregthod.

(g) Income Taxes—-Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and lialgititare
recognized for the future tax consequences ataiatto differences between the financial staternamying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases and gy loss and tax credit carryforwards. Defer@eddssets and liabilities are measured using
statutory tax rates expected to apply to taxatderire in the years in which those temporary diffeesnare expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets aniitieb of a change in tax rates is recognizechicoime in the period that includes the date of
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

enactment. We file our annual federal income téxrreon a consolidated basis. Furthermore, we m@zegincertain tax positions when we
have determined it is more likely than not thadaposition will be sustained upon examination. ldear, new information may become
available or applicable laws or regulations mayngeathereby resulting in a favorable or unfavoradgistment to amounts recorded.

(h) Self Insurance ReservesWe use a combination of insurance and self-inaggutans to provide for the potential liabilities f
workers' compensation, general liability, propéntgurance, director and officers' liability insucan vehicle liability and employee health ¢
benefits. Liabilities associated with the riskstthee retained by us are estimated, in part, bptiéal claims experience, severity factors and
the use of loss development factors. Our estimaserves may be materially different from our fatactual claim costs, and, in the future, if
we conclude an adjustment to our reserves is reduihe liability will then be adjusted accordingiythe period that determination is made.

() Revenue Recognitiea-Sales are recorded at the point of sale and camaeyof merchandise to customers. Sales are net of
estimated returns and exclude sales tax.

() Advertising—Costs for television, radio, newspaper, directimail other media are expensed as the advertigedstake place.
Advertising expenses for the fiscal year ended B008 were $33,856 and were $15,881 for thensinths ended June 30, 2007, and for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 wergé388and, $34,371, respectively. We do not receigaey from vendors to support our
advertising expenditures.

(k) Use of Estimates-The preparation of the consolidated financialestagnts in conformity with U.S. generally acceptecoanting
principles requires management to make estimaassumptions that affect the reported amountss#ta and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efcibnsolidated financial statements, and the rega@mounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could diffesrh those estimates.

() Foreign Currency Transactions-We enter into foreign currency forward exchanget@arts with major financial institutions to
manage and reduce the impact of fluctuations ieif@r currency exchange rates on certain contraoteathandise purchases with
international vendors between the order and payuhetets, which generally approximate 2 to 6 monffs.do not utilize derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

We account for our foreign currency forwaahtracts as cash flow hedges in accordance witinEial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Statement 133\ccounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities. Changes in the fair value of the contracts that a
considered to be effective are recorded in otherprehensive income (loss) until the hedged iteredésrded in earnings. Effective cash flow
hedges are reclassified out of other comprehemsoane (loss) and into cost of sales when the heédgesntory is sold. All of our cash flow
hedges are effective. The effect of foreign excleatmntracts on our financial position or result®pérations is immaterial.

(m) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived #&sseBe Disposed GfLong-lived assets, principally property and equémin
and leasehold improvements, are reviewed for impait when
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

circumstances indicate the carrying value of aptassly not be recoverable. For assets that are keelol and used, an impairment is
recognized when the estimated undiscounted casls figsociated with the asset or group of assédssghan their carrying value. If
impairment exists, an adjustment is made to whigeasset down to its fair value, and a loss isrdszbas the difference between the carrying
value and fair value. Fair values are determinesttd®n quoted market values, discounted cash fhowsernal appraisals, as applicable.
Assets to be disposed of are reported at the loire carrying amount or fair value less costsdlb Impairment of long-lived assets has not
had a material impact on our financial positiorsufes of operations or liquidity for the periodepented.

(n) Share-Based CompensatierPrior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for ourksttased compensation plans utilizing the intrinsic
value method in accordance with the provisions afdunting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (APB 25gnerally, no compensation
expense was recognized for fixed stock option pbetause the exercise prices of employee stocirgpéqualed or exceeded the market
prices of the underlying stock on the dates of gran

Statement 123(R) permits public comparoesdopt its requirements using one of two meth@sa "modified prospective" method in
which compensation cost is recognized beginning e effective date (a) based on the requirena@rsatement 123(R) for all share-based
payments granted after the effective date anddbgd on the requirements of Statement 123 foxmaltds granted to employees prior to the
effective date of Statement 123(R) that remain atecon the effective date; (2) a "modified retexdjve” method which includes the
requirements of the modified prospective methodtidlesd above, but also permits entities to rediated on the amounts previously
recognized under Statement 123 for purposes ofgpnoa disclosures either (a) all prior periods praed or (b) prior interim periods of the
year of adoption. We have adopted Statement 12%{R)d on the modified prospective method effectarauary 1, 200¢

Had we applied the fair value based metiuirecognition provisions of Statement of Finan&acounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123,
" Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatfofas amended by Statement of Financial Accouritamdards No. 148,Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation Transition and Disclo<") previously reported net income, basic earningisghare and diluted
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

earnings per share would have changed to the pmafamounts shown below (in thousands except @&e simounts):

Year Ended December 3:

2005
Net income as reporte $ 60,95¢
Less: Stoc-based employee compensation expense determinedthedair value method, net of related tax eft (3,909
Pro forma net incom $ 57,05(
Net income per common sha

Basic as reporte $ 1.4¢
Basic pro form: $ 1.3¢
Diluted as reporte $ 1.4¢€
Diluted pro forme $ 1.37

We recognized stock-based compensatiors coster the requirements of Statement 123(R) fofiital year ended June 30, 2008, the
six months ended June 30, 2007 and the year enéeehitber 31, 2006 as follows (in thousands):

June 30 December 31

June 30,
2008 2007 2006
Total cost of stoc-based compensation during the per $ 3,000 $1,84¢ $ 4,57¢
Amounts capitalized in ending inventc (1,039 (459 (1,372
Amount recognized and charged to cost of goods 1,207 621 82¢

Amounts charged against income for the period leetfay $ 3,172 $2,01¢ $ 4,02¢

Consistent with prior years, the fair vatfeeach stock option granted during the fiscaryzaled June 30, 2008 was estimated at the
date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricimadel. The expected term of an option is baseduntistorical review of employee
exercise behavior based on the employee classuxeor nonexecutive) and based on our consideration of theing contractual term
limited exercise activity existed for a certain dayee class. The risk-free interest rate is thestaomt maturity risk free interest rate for U.S.
Treasury instruments with terms consistent withetkgected lives of the awards. The expected vityaitl based on both the historical
volatility of our stock based on our historicalatgrices and implied volatility of our traded stamptions. In 2006, we increased the number
of data points used to calculate volatility fronagerly stock prices to daily stock prices and d&®d implied volatility of our traded stock
options which decreased our
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

volatility assumption. For the fiscal year endede)@0, 2008, the six months ended June 30, 20@7caandar years 2006, and 2005, these

factors were as follows:

Fiscal Year

Six Months Years Ended

Ended Ended December 31,
June 30, June 30,
2008 2007 2006 2005
Weighted average ri-free interest rat 2.3-5.1% 3.6-5.1% 4.2-4.4% 3.7%
Expected life of options (year 4.4-6.C 4.4-6.C 4.4-6.C 7.3
Expected stock volatilit 41.€-47.% 42.¢-43.5% 35.(% 56.(%
Expected dividend yiel 0.C% 5.C% 2.5% 2.C%

(o) Net Income Per Common ShareBasic net income per common share for the fiscat gaded June 30, 2008, the six months e
June 30, 2007 and for the years ended Decemb@086,and, 2005 was calculated by dividing net ineday the weighted average numbe
common shares outstanding for each period. Dilaegdncome per common share for the fiscal yeaeéddine 30, 2008, the six months
ended June 30, 2007 and for the years ended Dec&hp2006 and, 2005 was calculated by dividingimetme by the weighted average
number of common shares including the impact aftdié common stock options outstanding. See Notasd712.

(p) Recent Accounting Pronouncementin September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155y 'Value Measures." SFAS No. 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneag fair value, and requires additional discteswuabout fair value measurements. SFAS
No. 157 applies to fair measurements that are @rezquired or permitted by other accounting staasieexcept for measurements of s-
based payments and measurements that are simitarttoot intended to be fair value and does nahgk existing guidance as to whether or
not an instrument is carried at fair value. Thevigions of SFAS No. 157 are effective for recurrfag value measures for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning &ftarember 15, 2007. The provisions of SFAS No. Iig7edfective for non recurring fair
value measures for financial statements issuefistal years beginning after November 15, 2008.aMecurrently evaluating the impact, if
any, that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will haveooin consolidated financial statements.

In June of 2008, the FASB issued a Staffititim on EITF 03-6-1 "Determining Whether InstrumeGranted in Share-Based Payment
Transactions Are Participating Securities." The R8Bresses whether instruments granted in shasstp@yment transactions are
participating securities prior to vesting and, gfere, need to be included in the earnings alloaati computing earnings per share (EPS)
under the two class method described in paragré@lasd 61 of FASB Statement No. 128, "EarningsStere.” The FSP is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years bagmafter December 15, 2008 and interim periodsiwithose years. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of this adoptionitsrconsolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAST™®, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assetsl &mbilities." This statement permits
entities to choose to measure many financial ins&nts and certain other items at fair value. Ifffievalue option is elected, unrealized
gains and losses will be recognized in earningseh subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159astefé for fiscal years
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company doegxpect the adoption of this statement to laaneterial impact on our consolida
financial statements.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretad® ("FIN 48"), "Accounting for Uncertainty in Inome Taxes," an interpretation of SFAS
No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes." F-48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in inb@taxes recognized in an enterprise's fina
statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109. Thepnétation applies to all tax positions accourfitedn accordance with Statement 109
and requires a recognition threshold and measureatigibute for the financial statement recognitaard measurement of a tax position taken
or expected to be taken, in an income tax retunbs&quent recognition, derecognition, and measureimbdased on management's best
judgment given the facts, circumstances and inftionavailable at the reporting date. FIN 48 igefive for fiscal years beginning afi
December 15, 2006. We adopted the provisions of48Mn January 1, 2007. As a result of this adoptive Company recognized a
$145,000 increase in the liability for unrecognizax benefits, which was accounted for as a deereathe January 1, 2007 balance of
retained earnings.

(q) Other Comprehensive Income (LossComprehensive income (loss) represents our changguity (net assets), during a period,
from transactions and other events and circumssainom non-owner sources. It includes all changesguity during a period except those
resulting from investments or distributions by @oiwners. The components of comprehensive incooss)(are reported in the Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders' Equity.

() Off-balance Sheet or Variable Interest Arrangemer&/e do not have off-balance sheet arrangementsactions with
unconsolidated, limited purpose or variable inteegsities, nor do we have material transactionsoonmitments involving related persons or
entities.

(2) LEASE ACCOUNTING ADJUSTMENT

Based on certain views expressed in arleftEebruary 7, 2005 from the Office of the Chdefcountant of the Securities and Exchange
Commission to the American Institute of Certifieabc Accountants, we reviewed our accounting pesiand practices associated with
operating leases. Consistent with industry prastiee historically reported straightie rental expense beginning on the lease commnegict
date. This had the effect of excluding the rentdagl associated with the pre-opening or build-ariqu of our stores from the calculation of
the period over which we expensed rent. Followingreview, we modified our accounting policies stitét we begin recording rent expense
on the date we take possession of or have thetagige the premises.

As a result of this adjustment, we recordezhe-time, non-cash, $3.9 million ($2.4 millioet of income tax) cumulative charge to
earnings during the first quarter of calendar Y®&05. The adjustment did not impact historicaluitfe net cash flows or the timing of the
payments under related leases. Prior years' finhsi@tements were not restated as the impactsisgdue was immaterial to previously
reported results for any individual previous pesiod
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TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)
(3) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, net of accumuldegateciation, consisted of the following at:

December 31

June 30, June 30,
2008 2007 2006

Land $ 850¢ $ 850¢ $ 8,50/
Buildings 41,04 40,86¢ 40,65
Furniture and fixture 73,49 67,46" 63,597
Equipment 60,75: 58,451 57,40¢
Leasehold improvemen 11,75¢ 10,23¢ 9,62¢
195,55: 185,52! 179,78¢
Less accumulated depreciati (118,236 (101,749 (93,399
Net property and equipme $ 77,31t $ 83,77¢ $ 86,397

(4) DEBT

In December 2004, we entered into a $21lomirevolving credit facility which was set to gixe on December 2009. Any borrowing
under the revolver incurs interest at LIBOR or phiene rate, depending on the term of the borrowphgs an applicable margin. We incur
commitment fees of up to 0.25% on the unused podfdhe revolving credit facility. This rate ist@ced or increased as our average total
leverage ratio changes. Our indebtedness underdl facility is secured by a lien on our inveytand cash accounts, as well as a pleds
our ownership interests in all of our subsidiari@a.April 18, 2007, we entered into an amendmeuwitoexisting revolving credit facility.
The amendment to the revolving credit facility pdms for, among other things: the extension ofntla¢urity date from December 2009 to
December 2010; changes in applicable commitmestded interest rates in connection with averagerége ratios; a reduction of the
lenders' revolving credit commitment from $210 roill to $200 million; a change in the total leveraggo from the ratio "3:0 to 1:0" to the
ratio "2:50 to 1:0"; and a "clean down" provisi@yuirement that for 15 consecutive days duringpiméod from December 1 through
January 31,the sum of the aggregate principal atmafithe outstanding borrowings may not exceed r80on.

At June 30, 2008, we had $8.5 million cantsling under the revolving credit facility, with amounts classified as short term. The
amounts payable will be $0.0 million and $8.5 noifliat June 30, 2009 and 2010, respectively. No atsawill be due thereafter. At June 30,
2007, we had $56.5 million outstanding under thwlrgng credit facility, with $26.5 million classédd as short-term due to the clean down
provision under the revolving credit agreement. Ndd no balances outstanding related to our revpleiadit facility at December 31, 2006
and 2005. We had borrowing availability of $181.#lion at June 30, 2008. As of June 30, 2008, we tiatstanding letters of credit of
$9.9 million. Our weighted average interest ratettie fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 was 6.22%f Aane 30, 2007, we had outstanding
letters of credit of $8.9 million. As of Decembelr, 2006 and 2005, we had outstanding letters afitcog $8.1 million and $9.7 million,
respectively. Letters of credit under the revolvangdit facility are primarily for self-insuranceiposes.

The revolving credit facility contains cart restrictive covenants, which among other thimgguire us to comply with certain financial
ratios covering maximum leverage, minimum fixedrgea
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)

(4) DEBT (Continued)

coverage and minimum interest coverage. Othericetrs affect our ability to incur liens or makertain other restricted payments, sell
assets or merge or consolidate with any other pess of June 30, 2008, we were in compliance waitltovenants.

We believe our debt, as recorded, appro@mtair value as the interest rates are variaddedb on current market rates.
(5) ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities consist of the follovgin

December 31,
December 31

June 30, June 30,

2008 2007 2006
Sales tay $ 206 $2561 $ 5,70(
Self-insurance reserve 12,58 12,03: 12,12
Wages & benefit 5,57¢ 6,84: 7,18¢
Property taxe 1,37: 1,351 1,85¢
Other expense 6,99¢ 8,43( 9,06¢
Total accrued liabilitie: $28,59F $31,22: $ 35,93
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(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)

(6) INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense (benefit) for the fisedr ended June 30, 2008, the six month perioddeddne 30, 2007, and the years ended

December 31, 2006, and 2005, consists of:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2(C
Federal
State and locz
Total

Six months ended June 30, 2(
Federal
State and loce
Total

Year ended December 31, 2C
Federal
State and loce
Total

Year ended December 31, 2C
Federal
State and locz

Total

A reconciliation of the expected federaldme tax expense at the statutory income tax odfeetactual tax expense follows (based upon

a tax rate of 35%):

Expected federal income tax expe
State income taxes, net of related federal taxfiie
Other, ne!

Total tax expens

Current

Deferred

Total

$ 5,59¢
602

$ 1,26
171

$ 6,86(
774

$ 6,201

$1,43¢

$ 7,63/

$ 83¢
36¢

$ 72t
37

$ 1,56¢
40€

$ 1,20¢

$ 76z

$ 1,97C

$19,40¢
1,19¢

$ 417

(12¢)

$19,82¢
1,067

$20,60:

$ 28¢

$20,89:

34,46¢
2,45¢

(1,796)
(68)

32,67(
2,39(

36,92+

(1,867)

35,06(

Fiscal Year Ended

Six Months Ended

Year Ended December 31,

June 30, June 30,
2008 2007 2006 2005
$ 7,74¢ $ 1,76¢ $ 20,06¢ $ 33,60
611 182 39¢ 1,372
(729 20 42€ 81
$ 763¢ % 1,97¢ $ 20,89: $  35,06(
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(6) INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The tax effects of temporary differencest tive rise to significant portions of the defertax assets and liabilities were as follows:

June 30, December 31
2008 2007 2006
Deferred tax asset
Current:
Other payroll and benefi $ 751 $ 73¢ % 82¢
Inventory reserve 441 20¢ 152
Seltinsurance reserve 4,60t 4,27¢ 4,391
Stocl-compensatiol 2,53¢ 1,63¢ —
Other current liabilitie: 852 90t 2,011
Noncurrent:
Deferred ren 1,59: 1,66¢ 1,71t
Total gross deferred tax ass $10,77¢ $ 9,42t $ 9,097
Deferred tax liabilities
Current:
Inventory cost: $ 7,092 $ 442, $ 2,19¢
Prepaid supplie 2,35¢ 2,12¢ 2,02¢
Non-current:
Property and equipme 5,007 5,12z 6,36:
Total gross deferred tax liabiliti¢ 14,46( 11,674 10,58:
Net deferred tax liabilit $ 3681 $224¢ $ 1,48¢

We expect the deferred tax assets at JOn20®8 to be fully recovered and the deferreditbilities at June 30, 2008 to be fully
satisfied through the reversal of taxable tempodiffgrences in future years as a result of nodmainess activities. Accordingly, no
valuation allowances for deferred tax items wenmesgdered necessary as of June 30, 2008.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—The Company or one of its subsidiaries files inedax returns in the U.S. federal
jurisdiction, and various state jurisdictions. Withw exceptions, the Company is no longer subjett.6. federal, state and local income
examinations by tax authorities for years befor@dld he Internal Revenue Service (IRS) has condageexamination of the Company for
years ending before 20C

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretao. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaXesn interpretation of SFAS No. 109,
" Accounting for Income Tax&g"FIN 48"), to create a single model to addressoainting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN d@8rifies the
accounting for income taxes by prescribing a mininmecognition threshold that a tax position is iegfito meet before being recognized in
the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides gioi@ on derecognition, measurement, classificatiderest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosure and transition.
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(6) INCOME TAXES (Continued)

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48, onudam 1, 2007. As a result of the implementatiofridd 48, the Company recognized $145
increase in the liability for unrecognized tax bfeisewhich was accounted for as a decrease tdahaary 1, 2007 balance of retained
earnings. A reconciliation of the beginning andiegc&amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as fadlo

Balance at January 1, 20 $1,14¢
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 27
Settlement: (99
Balance at June 30, 20 $1,07¢
Additions based on tax positions related to curyeatr 57
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 11
Reductions for tax positions of prior yei (53
Balance at June 30, 20 $1,091

The total amount of unrecognized tax beséfincluding interest and penalty accruals) adusfe 30, 2008 is $1,583. The liability for
unrecognized tax benefits is included in the baasteeet under Income Taxes Payable. Included ibatemce at June 30, 2008 is $1,091 of
tax positions that, if recognized, would affect #ffective tax rate. Also, included in the balaatdune 30, 2008 are $492 of tax positions for
which the ultimate deductibility is highly certdbut for which there is uncertainty about the timafghe deductibility. Because of the impact
of the deferred tax accounting, other than intemest penalties, the disallowance of the shorteuckduility period would not affect the annual
effective tax rate but would accelerate the paynéotsh to the taxing authority to an earlier pari

The Company classifies and recognizeseésteand penalties accrued related to unrecogrézeblenefits in income tax expense. During
the tax year ended June 30, 2008, the six montpedrd ended June 30, 2007, and the tax yearsidde@eember 31, 2006, and 2005, we
recognized, net of tax effect, $60, $45, $141, $1@B in interest, respectively. We paid, net of 86 during the six months ended June 30,
2007, and $112 during the year ended December(®85. Ao interest was paid in the years ended JOn2(®8, or December 31, 2005.

We do not anticipate that the total amaininrecognized tax benefits will significantly iease or decrease the effective tax rate within
12 months of June 30, 2008.

(7) STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS

We have established a 1997 Long-Term Eduitgntive Plan, as amended (the "1997 Plan"),aa2d04 Long-Term Equity Incentive
Plan, as amended (the "2004 Plan"), which allowowugrant stock options and restricted stock toatlines, officers and key employees of, and
certain other key individuals who perform servit@sus and our subsidiaries. The 1997 Plan and Z0&d authorizes grants of options to
purchase up to 4,800,000 and 2,000,000 sharegatasgly, of authorized, but unissued common st&t&ck options are awarded at fair
market value equal to the average of the high awdidading price of our common stock on the datgraft.

Options granted under the 1997 Plan and 208&n typically vest over periods of four to fiyears and expire in ten years. The exercise
prices of the options range between $4.92 and $3%Rich
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(7) STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

represents market value on the grant date of theestof common stock into which such options asr@sable. At December 31, 2007, all
shares available under the 1997 Plan had beenegrantd the 1997 Plan expired as of December 29, 20re were 1,466,431 shares
available for grant under the 2004 Plan at Jun&G08.

Following is a summary of transactionstintato the 1997 Plan and 2004 Plan's optionsHerfiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the six
month period ended June 30, 2007 and for the twosyended December 31, 2006, and 2005:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term (Years) Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,092,060 $ 17.7¢
Granted during yes 350,97¢ 29.97
Exercised during ye: (267,572 10.4¢
Cancelled during ye: (159,17 27.5¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,016,290 $ 20.07
Granted during yee 404,00( 15.7¢
Exercised during yes (53,405 10.7¢
Cancelled during ye: (190,31) 28.5¢
Expired during yea (138,06%) 27.0¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,038,50. $ 18.2(
Granted during yee 130,00( 14.6(
Exercised during yes (9,929 1.3¢
Forfeited during yea (25,987 23.3¢
Expired during yea (40,510 26.4¢
Options Outstanding at June 30, 2( 2,092,07 17.8:
Granted during yes 95,00( 7.12
Exercised during yes (2,000 1.4%
Forfeited during yea (115,919 13.5:
Expired during yea (70,619 15.6¢4

Options Outstanding at June 30, 2008 (vested czagd to vest 1,999,54! 17.6¢€ 4.9¢ —

Exercisable at June 30, 20 1,596,59 $ 17.7¢ 42¢ % —

The weighted average grant date fair vafughare options granted during the fiscal yeaedniiine 30, 2008, the six months ended
June 30, 2007 and the calendar years ended Dec&hpb2006, and 2005 was $1.69, $4.10, $4.71, aA®81respectively. The intrinsic
value of vested shares at June 30, 2008 is zero.

The total intrinsic value of share opti@xercised was $9 thousand and $139 thousand dimerfiscal year ended June 30, 2008 and the
six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively. dtadintrinsic value of share options exercisedriythe years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005, were
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(7) STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

$332 thousand and $5.4 million, respectively. AteJ80, 2008 we had $4.1 million of total unrecogdistock-based compensation expense
related to stock options that is expected to begeized over a weighted average period of 3.05syear

The following table summarizes informatalmout stock options outstanding at June 30, 2008.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average
Remaining Weighted Average Weighted Average
Number Contractual Life Exercise Price Per Number Exercise Price Per
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding (Years) Share Exercisable Share
(in thousands)

$4.9—%$8.31 155,79: 6.2¢€ $ 7.2 79,36¢ $ 8.0¢
$10.0(—$10.00 467,00( 2.07 $ 10.0C 467,00( $ 10.0C
$12.3¢—%$14.70 160,95¢ 8.3t $ 13.7i 51,74( $ 13.71
$14.7(—%$20.02 294,79 6.17 $ 17.5% 195,71. $ 17.7¢
$20.0—%$20.04 500,00( 4.7 $ 20.0¢ 500,00( $ 20.0¢
$20.7¢—%$30.25 285,99¢ 6.21 $ 27.5¢ 216,88’ $ 28.1¢
$30.2¢—%$35.23 135,00( 6.82 $ 31.21] 85,89: $ 31.22
1,999,54! 5.0¢ $ 17.6¢ 1,596,59 $ 17.7:

Restricted Stock Awards—Under the terms of the 1997 Plan and the 2004 w&amay also grant restricted stock to compensate
certain directors, officers, key employees andaderther key individuals who perform servicesdsrand our subsidiaries. Restricted stock
awards are not transferable, but bear rights ofesamip including voting and dividend rights. Shaames valued at the market price at the date
of award. At December 31, 2007, all shares unded 897 Plan had been granted and the 1997 Plaredxas of December 29, 2007. As of
June 30, 2008, there were 375,820 shares of estritock outstanding with a weighted averageviaine of $5.00 per share under the 2004
plan. Compensation expense related to restrictagbshs recognized ratably over the requisite serperiod. This expense totaled
$433 thousand for the fiscal year ended June 3B,2dnd $49 thousand for the six months ended 30n2007. At June 30, 2008, we had
$1.3 million of total unrecognized stock-based cengation expense related to restricted stock avihadiss expected to
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(7) STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

be recognized over a weighted average period of&adls. There was no expense for the years endeghiber 31, 2006, or 2005.

Weighted-
Average
Number of  Fair Value at Date of

Shares Grant

Outstanding at December 31, 2( —
Granted during yes 6,74¢ % 14.8:
Vested during yee —
Forfeited during yea —

Outstanding at June 30, 20 6,74¢ % 14.8¢
Granted during yee 376,82( 5.0C
Vested during yee (6,749 14.8:
Forfeited during yea (2,000 4.8t

Outstanding at June 30, 20 375,82( % 5.0C

(8) OPERATING LEASES

We lease substantially all store locationder non-cancelable operating leases. Our lezsesagly are for a five year period with two
five year renewal options and, in very limited aintstances, our leases involve a tenant allowarrdedsehold improvements. As disclose
Note 2, we record rent expense ratably over tleedlifthe lease beginning with the date we takegss$sn of or have the right to use
premises, and if our leases provide for a tendoivahce, we record the landlord reimbursementlesbdity and ratably amortize the liability
as a reduction to rent expense over the leaselieginning with the date we take possession of ntrobthe physical access to the premises.
Leases for new stores also typically allow us thiétg to terminate a lease after 24 to 36 monthké store does not achieve sales
expectations or another location appears moreat#sirFuture minimum rental payments under leaseasafollows:

Fiscal Years Ending June 30,

2009 $ 60,49:
2010 48,53}
2011 37,28¢
2012 25,76¢
2013 11,92:
Thereafte! 6,53(
Total minimum rental paymen $190,54:

Rent expense for the fiscal year ended 30n2008 was $74,937 and $35,184 for the six nweatided June 30, 2007. Rent expense for
2006, and 2005, was $65,366, and $63,362, respéctRent expense includes rent for store locatamswarehouses. Rent based on sales is
not material to our financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)
(9) 401(K) PROFIT SHARING PLAN AND STOCK PURCHASE PROGRAM

We have a 401(k) profit sharing plan fa tlenefit of our full-time, eligible employees afs&x months of service. Under the plan,
eligible employees may request us to deduct anttibate from 1% to 20% of their salary to the pl&ubject to Internal Revenue Service
Regulations, we match each participant's contriloutip to 4% of participant's compensation. We egpdrtontributions of $930 thousand for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 and $466 thduharing the six months ended June 30, 2007. Weresed contributions of
$872 thousand and $801 thousand during the yededlddecember 31, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Prior to December 31, 2007, we offeredipiation in a stock purchase program for full tisTeployees after completion of 90 days of
continuous employment. This stock purchase plantemsinated effective December 31, 2007. We exgknse contributions as incurred.
The contributions were immaterial for all reporteghrs.

(10) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

We had various forward foreign currencytcacts outstanding at June 30, 2008, and 2007Daaémber 31, 2006, with fair values of
$418, $40, and $13, respectively. Our risk thantenparties to these contracts may be unable forpeis minimized by limiting the
counterparties to major financial institutions. Ta# value of our forward foreign currency contsawere determined based on quoted me
prices of comparable contracts.

(11) LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During 2001 and 2002, we were named agendant in three complaints filed in the Superiou@ of California in and for the County
of Los Angeles. The plaintiffs sought to certifgtatewide class made up of some of our currenf@mnaer employees, which they claim are
owed compensation for overtime wages, penaltiesraadest. The plaintiffs also sought attorney&ssfand costs. In October 2003, we ent
into a settlement agreement with a sub-class cktipdaintiffs consisting of manager-in-training andnagement trainees which was paid in
November 2005 with no material impact to our finahstatements. In August 2008, our motion fa-certification of the class of remaining
plaintiffs was granted, thereby dismissing the@tssl action claim. However, we expect the plaintdfappeal this ruling and some may pursue
their claims individually. A similar lawsuit, whichlso alleges claims concerning meal and rest ggrivas filed in Orange County, Califor
in 2004 by managers, managers-in-training andtassimanagers and an amended complaint was fil@drinary 2007. This case is still in
the discovery phase and the plaintiffs have bedared to move for class certification. We do nqiest these complaints to have a material
impact on our financial statements.

We intend to vigorously defend all pendawgions. We do not believe these or any other lpgaieedings pending or threatened against
us would have a material adverse effect on ounfired condition or results of operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)
(12) EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

The following table sets forth the compiaiatof basic and diluted earnings per common share:

Years Ended
Fiscal Year End Six Month
IScal Year endec EndI)e(d ‘:IOUI'IneS?,C December 31,
June 30,
2008 2007 2006 2005
Basic Earnings Per Shal
Net income $ 14,49¢ $ 3,081 $36,42¢ $60,95¢
Weighted average nhumber of common shares outsig 41,43¢ 41,43: 41,39:. 41,26¢
Basic earnings per common sh $ 03t $ 007 $ 08t $ 1.4¢
Diluted Earnings Per Shar
Net income $ 14,49¢ $ 3,081 $36,42¢ $60,95¢
Dilutive effect of employee stock optio 55 204 25E 50€
Weighted average number of common shares outsi@ 41,43¢ 41,43: 41,39: 41,26¢
Weighted average number of common shares andwdilaffect of outstanding
employee stock optior 41,49 41,63% 41,64° 41,77(
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 0.3 $ 007 $ 087 $ 1.4¢€

Options representing the rights to purcteasamon stock of 1,597,000 shares at June 30, BB33000 at June 30, 2007, 776,000 at
December 31, 2006, and 584,000 shares at Decertip2035 had exercise prices greater than the avepaoted market price for our
common stock. These shares were not included idithted earnings per share calculation becausaghemed exercise of such options
would have been anti-dilutive.

(13) QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)
A summary of the unaudited quarterly residtas follows for the ten quarters ended Jun2@08:

Quarters Ended(1)

Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31,
2007 2007 2008 June 30, 2008
Net sales $ 201,65¢ $ 308,68 $ 178,44¢ $ 196,49:
Gross profit 75,70¢ 114,90 63,99¢ 68,09:
Operating income (los 3,16¢ 34,24( (7,35¢) (5,199
Net income (loss 1,15¢ 20,53« (4,699 (2,496
Basic earnings (loss) per shi $ 0.0z $ 05C $ (0.1)) % (0.06)
Diluted earnings (loss) per she $ 0.0 % 05C $ 0.1) % (0.0¢)
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(All dollar amounts in thousands, except for per sare amounts)

(13) QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (C ontinued)

Net sales

Gross profit

Operating incomi

Net income

Basic earnings per she
Diluted earnings per sha

Net sales

Gross profit

Operating incomi

Net income

Basic earnings per she
Diluted earnings per sha

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Quarters Ended(1)

March 31, 2007

June 30, 2007

189,15¢ $ 219,36«
70,86¢ 79,80(
1,57¢ 4,12¢
1,043 2,03¢
0.0¢ $ 0.0t
0.0¢ $ 0.0t
Quarters Ended(1)

March 31, 2006 June 30, 2006 Sept. 30, 2006 Dec. 31, 2006
187,75¢ $ 207,66 $ 194,41. % 321,26t
73,59! 74,27: 73,06 121,58
10,42¢ 5,04¢ 5,72% 37,25¢
6,54( 2,89¢ 3,16z 23,82;
0.1€ $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ % 0.5¢
0.1¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ % 0.57

(1) A significant portion of our revenues and net eagsiare realized during the period from Octobesugh December.
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe Registration Statements (Forms S-8 Nd3-738141, 333-90315, 333-117880 and
333-145811 and Form S-3 Nos. 333-108275 and 333a3)7of Tuesday Morning Corporation and in thetexlaProspectuses of our reports
dated August 26, 2008, with respect to the conat#d financial statements of Tuesday Morning Cafion, and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting of Tuesday Morni@grporation, included in this Annual Report (Fat6rK) for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Dallas, Texas

August 26, 2008
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Kathleen Mason, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Roeésday Morning Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipar, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantaalisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting tliaturred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regiss fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimnernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauainmittee of the registrant's board of direci@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 29, 2008 By: /sl KATHLEEN MASON

Kathleen Mason
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Stephanie Bowman, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Roeésday Morning Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipar, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantaalisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting tliaturred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regiss fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimnernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauainmittee of the registrant's board of direci@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 29, 2008 By: /s/ STEPHANIE BOWMAN

Stephanie Bowman
Chief Financial Officel
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF
TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 81350

I, Kathleen Mason, the Chief Executive Officer afebday Morning Corporation, hereby certify that:

1. The annual report on Form 10-K of Tuesday Mornimmgpg@ration for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&esrExchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the above-mentiongubrefairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of
operations of Tuesday Morning Corporation.

Date: August 29, 2008 By: /s/ KATHLEEN MASON

Kathleen Mason
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF
TUESDAY MORNING CORPORATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 81350

I, Stephanie Bowman, the Chief Financial OfficeTaksday Morning Corporation, hereby certify that:

1. The annual report on Form 10-K of Tuesday Mornimgg@ration for the period ended June 30, 2008 ftdignplies with the
requirements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the 8tes Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the above-mentiongubrefairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of
operations of Tuesday Morning Corporation.

Date: August 29, 2008 By: /sl STEPHANIE BOWMAN

Stephanie Bowman
Chief Financial Officel
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